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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric
manufacturers, providing vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. In addition
to its core business of manufacturing and sale of knitted fabric which generates majority of the total revenue, the
Group’s product range also includes garments and sewing threads. As a major knitted fabric supplier to garment
manufacturers in over 40 countries that supply apparel products including sportswear, casual wear, sleep wear and
inner wear to many internationally renowned retailers and brands, Fountain Set’s worldwide sales reached HK$6.89
billion (US$886 million) in the financial year 2014.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings)
Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative
offices in 5 countries and a global staff force of approximately 11,600.

Since June 2012, Chinatex Corporation has become the largest shareholder of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited.
Chinatex Corporation is under direct administration of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the PRC and is one of the 500 largest enterprises in the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com

To learn more about Chinatex Corporation, please visit www.chinatex.com
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F|NANC|AL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERGSGTRE
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$Mil GE# T HK$MIl B & E T
Operating Results EEXE
Revenue BEH 6,891.1 6,942.8
Financial Performance BERE
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ARREB NEGEF 90.6 91.3
Profit margin BH% 1.3% 1.3%
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF (&)
- Basic —HEXK 7.5 76
- Diluted -#8 7.5 7.6
Dividends e
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BRERFzRBREER)
Per share (HK cents) S8 B 4.0 2.0
Dividend payout ratio KB E 53.3% 26.3%
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
MW2014%12A31H R2013412A31H
HK$Mil G E#E T HK$MIl B & E T
Financial Position at Year End REERLERZHERR
Net current assets RBEETE 1,818.6 1,9932
Total assets BERE 5,565.7 6,132.6
Non-current bank borrowings ERBRITEE 213.7 516.6
Total bank borrowings BRTEE 999.9 1,355.5
Net bank borrowings FITEEFE 42.4 205.6
Total liabilities aErE 2,240.1 2,854.0
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE (BT 2.65 2.59
Capital expenditure NG 129.2 132.2
Financial Statistics B &t
Return on equity (%) BEEHE(BERL) 2.9% 3.1%
Consolidated tangible net worth A @ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ 2,977.5 29205
Consolidated total bank debt to consolidated tangible 4 A R 1TEBHEGAEENEE L
net worth 0.3 05
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated FARERFERBHANEHEANE
interest expense 2 Al 10.4 103
Consolidated current assets to consolidated BERYEEHRERBEEL
current liabilities 1.9 19
Inventory turnover period (days) FERAEH(A) 77 97
Trade and bills receivable turnover period (days) EEREREYGERES(A) 73 67
Trade and bills payable turnover period (days) EELFREMFIEFRES(A) 47 59
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B RGTHE

—L

Revenue Gross Profit Margin
—§ 3] EF=E
10000 9167 20
8000 7,594 1618 153
6943 6,891 15
6,149
6000 1087 1037
10
4000
2000 5
0 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 0 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Profit/(Loss) Margin Profit/(Loss)
BR (8% 2R, (&58)
HKS M
BEET
* 300
224 211
4 36 200
28
100 9 91
2 13 13
0
0 -100
-200
2
-300
35 -324
-400
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Net Bank Borrowings Inventory and Inventory Turnover Period
SRITHEFE FERFERAEH
HKS M HKS M Days
HEHET HEET B
2500 3000 137 150
2000 1889 2500 125
2000 100
1500
1.075 1500 75
1000
1000 50
500 265 500 25
206
[ I
o 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 0 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 0

0 Inventory 75
—®— Inventory Turnover Period 77 £ [EJ#% A

Note: In August 2012, the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 August to 31 December. Hence the figures for
the period ended 31 December 2012 cover the 16 months period from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012.
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m Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014
B E
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS SEERR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended 16 months ended year ended year ended
31 August 31 August 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
EHE20105 HZ011F HZ201268 HZ2013F BZ014F
8A3IALLEE 8A3IHILEE  12A31ALLI6MEA 12A31AEEE 12A31ALEE
HK$000 T HK$000 2T HK$000 /8T HK$000 T4 HK$'000 &7
Revenue BEH 6,148,949 7,593,839 9,167,089 6,942,807 6,891,133
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHmEHN/ (B8) 250,095 343,191 (333,457) 86,398 123,829
Income tax s (6,516) (103,473) (4,304) 14,290 (28,068)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period _EE/HREH/ (BR) 243579 239,718 (337,761) 100,688 95,761
Attributable to: fEfh:
Owners of the Company KRREEA 223,798 210,886 (324,167) 91,304 90,590
Non-controlling interests FERER 19,781 28,832 (13,594) 9,384 5,171
243,579 239,718 (337,761) 100,688 95,761




BEEE(RE) HRED 20145 % % (R

FINANCIAL SEJMMARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R&E B BERRT

At At At At At

31 August 2010 31 August 2011 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 | 31 December 2014
M2010F8A31H  M201168A31H  M20124612A318  M2013F12A31F | R2014%12A31A
HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T HK$000 73T HK$'000 F&7
(restated) (&£Z3])

Non-current assets ERBEE 2,479,434 2,300,207 2,023,461 1.867,767 1,789,197

Current assets RPEE 4,386,539 4,308,695 3,996,634 4,264,878 3,776,536

Current liabilities RPEE 2,974,955 2,699,104 2,532,214 2,271,639 1,957,936

Net current assets RHEEFE 1,411,584 1,609,501 1,464,420 1,993,239 1,818,600

Total assets less current liabilites BB EHFEE & 3,891,018 3,909,798 3,487,881 3,861,006 3,607,797

Non-current liabilities FRBEE 1,077,923 871,572 308,101 582,359 282,174

Net assets BEFE 2,813,095 3,038.226 3,179,780 3,278,647 3,325,623

Capital and reserves BEARREE
Share capital B 158802 158802 240,609 240,609 862,211 (Note) ()
Reserves 8 2474523 2,679,224 2,769,113 2,876,611 2,320,317 (Note) ()

Equity attributable to owners RAAER NELER

of the Company 2,633,325 2,838,026 3,009,722 3,117,220 3,182,528
Non-controlling interests RS 179,770 200,200 170,058 161,427 143,095
Total equity RHAE 2,813,095 3,038,226 3,179,780 3,278 647 3,325,623

Note: Certain reserves were transferred to share capital according to the requirement under £ b FEERIEN2014FE3 A3 £MN FEREFE R
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 with effective from 3 March 2014. AUER 2 EREERA - FHIEH NG A S RER M
Details of which is set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. 324
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS

RIEN AR

Fountain Set Limited
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TRUAR S

Name of Awards/Certifications 2278 /32 75 £ 7

Issued by 2 H & (7

1 2015/16 Autumn/Winter Fabrics China Appraisal Entry Enterprise

2015/16 /& BmTE A A B

2 Star of China Fabric — The Best Design Service Award*

REE R 2 — RIER RIS R

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited
HiREEASERAR

Gdk F ARk

E B Ak (4543)
ST ELEFETRENER

s MERTE

Name of Awards/Certifications #£78/:2 & % &

China Textile Information Center and China Textiles
Development Centre

FESEESH L BRGBERRED L

Textile Apparel Weekly*
45 48 AR %< A T

Issued by 2 H B8 iz

3 Safety Standardization Grade 3 Enterprise (Textiles)*

ZEEEFEC=REE (Hk)

4 5.1 Labor Certificates of Yancheng City*
BBy T 1 — 45 B R

5 5.1 Civilized Model Unit (Class Group)*
h—XERRE M (JE4E)

Yancheng Safety Production Supervision Authority*
BT RrEEEEERD

Yancheng Federation of Trade Union*
HymeTE

Yancheng Federation of Trade Union*
HEymaeTE
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATI
RIEKR

£

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

BEREEMRBRAA

FESE

POt s gie Lo 0
HAHNAANTELFA LR
WAL, T,

Name of Awards/Certifications 2£78/52 & % 18 Issued by % H &7

6 2014 Innovative Management Model Enterprise of Yancheng City* Yancheng Economic and Information Technology Commission
2014F F M ER AR RSB By mEENERLEES

7 2014 Outstanding Enterprise of Fire Safety Management* Yancheng Development Zone Fire Services Team*
014FEHEN T2 BB TIEREEN L N = A G EPNE S

8 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-TexiZ #1007 I+ #0 R E Pt

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
TEEEHASERAE

LA DLAL AT IT O L i -

FrATIFIIT LN % %

Name of Awards/Certifications 2218/ 75 & 7 Issued by 3 Hi &A1
9 2013 Award for Building Ecological Civilization Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone Committee of
2013 F B AR5 Communist Party of China
RIS RNEXERERIEZES
10 2013 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign Investment* Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
2013 FEHINEREREDE Development Zone

TEEMENEXHEREEZE S

11 2013 Outstanding Enterprise of Environment Protection* Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial

2013F HIRIBRELESE Development Zone
IESMBENEXRAEREEEZES
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Issued by 2% H B8z
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14

15

16

2013 Top100 Star Enterprise*
2013FEERALLE

Top 10 Model Enterprise of Committee for the Care of the Next
Generation of Jiangyin*

TRmHERBERBEIE

2013 Model Enterprise of Safety Culture Building of Jiangyin*
013FFEIRTEE UL BER RSB E

Workers Vanguard*

T AFc885%

2013 Outstanding Grassroots Organization*
2013F [E L B B AR L

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist
Party of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s
Government

RETIRTE IR ARBRA

Jiangyin Committee for the Care of the Next
Generation*

TRmEALT—RIEZEE

Production Safety Committee of Jiangyin Municipal
People’s Government*
TETARBRZE4EZE®

Jiangyin Federation of Trade Union*
Iemare

Jiangyin High-tech Zone Committee of Communist
Party of China
RHTRSNRIEEES
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Name of Awards/Certifications 2218 /32 7 £ & Issued by %% | B8z

17  “Five-First, Five-Virtue” Service-oriented Party of Jiangyin* Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist Party of

Them (R IR E EAR China
FHIRTZE

Ever Win Quality Certification Center

18 Certificate of Management System for Energy
LREEERZTR L

Eb/ﬁ EE%/\WLMH&%

19 Organic Content Standard (OCS) The Institute for Marketecology (IMO)

AREEIRE W A RE T SRR
20 Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) The Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
ERERG BRIRE W AR S TR AT

Swiss Textile Testing Institute

Tyt 4 Ak E P

21 Oeko-Tex Standard 100
Oeko-TexiZ £100*
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Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
RELPHBESHBODRERAA

Tedtech Ur harmic dubidnicon
R e
e e

Name of Awards/Certifications 2278 /32 7% £ 7

Issued by % H & (7

22

Oeko-Tex Standard 100
Oeko-TexiZ #100*

Swiss Textile Testing Institute
T+ 40 R E P

23

Guangdong Province Credible Enterprise of 2002-2013*
200222013 F EERETARERFEALE

Guangdong Province Administration for Industry & Commerce
BREIMTHRERR

24

Unit Member of The DongGuan Environmental Science
Association*
REMRBENEEESHE N

The DongGuan Environmental Science Association
REMBRRHNEEE

25

Business Partner Award

XA (ERF R

Target Sourcing Services
B Z S RS A Al
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Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
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Name of Awards/Certifications 2218 /27 & 1

Issued by 2 H &1

26 Measurement Assurance System Certification*
SFERIEBRBEREBITS

Bureau of Quality and Technology Supervision of Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province

EREREMEERMEER

27  Organic Content Standard (OCS)

ECOCERT Greenlife

B EEFE FEEFRRREE
28 Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) ECOCERT Greenlife
2 IRA M4 B R FEEFRRES
* English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
ENEBERE IR XEEZEX - MERE MUAPXERRE-
# Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English name shall prevail.

TXEBEABETAXBWLE WERE AR BB RE-



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Directors of the Company (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the Group for
the financial year of 2014, and to provide you the overview of the Group's

strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$6,891,133,000 (2013: HK$6,942,807,000) and attributable profit for
the year of HK$90,590,000 (2013: HK$91,304,000).

The global economy was on a trend of moderate recovery in 2014, but
downside risks accumulated as the year went by. Continued tensions in
geopolitical situations, economic stagnations of developed countries and
declining potential growth of emerging markets have created a negative
atmosphere for the global economy. The U.S., which is the Group’s major
target market, saw its GDP reduced by 2.1% in the first quarter, causing
severe impact on the Group’s business. Luckily its economy came out of
difficulty in the second and third quarter as its GDP started to rebound and
projected moderate growth in the fourth quarter, easing the overall pressure
on the Group’s sales. As for China, the substantial depreciation of RMB up
to 2.6% and declines in yarn price caused by adjustments of cotton reserve
policy in mainland China in the first half of the year have greatly hampered
business of the Group during this period. Although RMB exchange rate
stabilized in the second half of the year, China, as a major driving force for
global economy, has recorded below-target growth rate in 2014. China tends
to reduce reliance on trading and investments by shifting its development
focus to expanding domestic demand and stimulating consumption,
nevertheless, market still anticipates further downward pressure on Chinese
economy. During the year, European developed countries experienced
uneven recovery pace, especially that euro area countries demonstrated

weak growth momentum, with low growth and low inflation.

Annual Report 2014
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In face with the aforesaid situations, the Group has grown its business
with innovation and implemented sophisticated management to enhance
efficiency as well as to improve gross margin; and at the same time
focused on adjusting our product structure and kept on strengthening
product positioning. As such, we can ensure that various business activities
can be carried out effectively. Under the leadership of the Board and
our management team, all of our staff stood together with one heart, in
full royalty and faith, to optimize administrative structure and business
processes, and to implement measures of reducing costs and controlling
expenses. Besides, different production companies and functional
departments have closely supported and collaborated in all operational
activities in the past year, which lead to a good performance. We were
able to strengthen management processes such as business analysis, and
consequently lifting our operating level. All these efforts have contributed to
the overall stability of the Group’s operation and production, and helped us

achieve steady advancements.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2015, although there are more clear signs for recovery, the
outlook of global economy is still uncertain, especially when there is risk
of deflation in euro area and generally weak growth momentum among
the countries. In emerging markets, the growths continue to slow down.
Fortunately the recovery pace of the U.S. continues to strengthen, with
annual GDP growth estimated at 3%; the improvement of labor market have
brought unemployment rate to the lowest level since the start of the financial
crisis, which is expected to stimulate private consumption and to hopefully
bring in more actual orders for the Group. However, local climate anomalies

may affect textile and apparel market environment.

As for China, the government issued a range of “micro-stimulation”
policies, which will hopefully promote positive development of the domestic
economy. Meanwhile, the government emphasized that China’s economy
has entered a new normal, which no longer focuses solely on GDP growth,
but on the overall quality of development. The economy will shift gear from
the previous high speed to a medium-to-high-speed growth; the economic
structure will constantly be improved and upgraded; and the economy will
increasingly driven by innovation instead of input and investment. This new
normal will bring new development opportunities to China, which will benefit
the Group’s business. But as the Chinese government imposes stricter
environmental requirements and higher salary guidelines for enterprises,
the Group still needs to focus on solving the problem of production costs

increase.
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In view of these, the Group will continue to optimize its reform measures
in 2015. We will focus on research and development of competitive new
products according to consumer market changes and customer needs.
Meanwhile, the Group will help various production companies to position
their products and deliver quality products and customer services. The
Group will also implement stringent control over the costs and make
frequent review, so as to use our resources effectively. As a socially
responsible printing and dyeing corporate, we will always continue make
effort in environmental protection, strictly compliance with the emission
standards, and purchase of new equipment and enhance the facilities, with

an aim to reducing energy consumption.

2015 will be another year of diligent efforts, with more new challenges and
opportunities facing by the Group. There will be various difficulties and
tremendous challenges on our path of business development under such
a tough and uncertain environment, but we will be able to reach our goal
of thorough improvement of production and operation mode as long as we
continue to address difficulties, to focus on improving management, and to
build on enhancing efficiency. We believe that all of our staff will work hard
to follow the Board’s direction and objectives, stick together with one heart
and to fully implement the working plan set by the Board, and to further
map out our long term development strategy. With our spirit of “diligence,
frugality, sincerity, and integrity” and our general direction of “to stabilize
operation and to enhance development”, we will keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing
Fountain Set Group to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual
operating tasks and targets with excellent performances, and creating

brilliant returns and results for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
of our customers, suppliers, bankers and other partners for their continuing
trust and support, and also to the Group’s management and all of loyal and
dedicated employees. | would also like to express my deepest appreciation

to all shareholders for their continuing support to us.

Zhao Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

20 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & A

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

In 2014, a year witnessing generally volatile global economy, the textile
industry could not keep itself at bay. Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
maintained steady growth in financial performance during this financial year,
mainly attributable to its focus on operation and management improvements
including continuous cost reduction and control initiatives to boost operating
profitability. The streamlined management structure and business processes

also led to significant gains in operational efficiency during the year.

The Group is a knitted fabric manufacturer with products mainly marketed
in the U.S., Europe and China, which are supplied to end-buyer customers
primarily consisting of renowned international brands and retailers. The
Group’s production capacity maintained at about 25 million pounds of fabric
dyeing per month which was diversified among four fabric mills in both
China and Sri Lanka.

In the current financial year, the Group has successfully optimized
production allocation to improve the mill utilization. The upgrade of
equipment has leveraged the advantages of the integrated production &
supply chain of knitting, dyeing and printing as well as the feature of rapid
response, in addition to higher efficiency and lower energy consumption.
In respect of lowering controllable costs, the Group has implemented the
following measures: deregistrating inactive or non-profitable companies and
business to reduce administrative costs, integrating the garment business
to reduce operating costs, focusing on high value-added orders to ensure
sufficient orders and greater competitiveness, and further implementing
the methods of energy saving and emission reduction to comply with
the government requirement on environmental protection and reduce
the overall energy consumption of the production mills. These measures
have achieved notable results, enabling the Group to allocate funds to
other appropriate use. Last but not least, the Group has optimized the
work allocation of employees, which helped to improve the management
structure and operation procedure. By clearly identifying the work division
of each department, the execution ability of the overall management was

significantly enhanced.
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Customers

As a fabric manufacturer, the Group’s direct customers are garment factories
which have actual business transactions. At the same time, the Group has
also developed a long-lasting and strong cohesiveness relationship with the
retailers and brand owners since our establishment back in 1969. These
so called “end-buyer” customers are commonly the ones to dictate, select
and negotiate fabric contents, volume and price directly with the Group.
The Group is also committed in developing new and innovative fabric for
our customers with over four-decade of our expertise and craftsmanship
in the circular knitted fabric industry. Our end-buyer customers consist of

renowned international and domestic brands.

Products

The Group has been actively developing and offering a wide range of
knitted fabric under a trademark of “fabric by Fountain Set™” which is a
consolidated brand name of our comprehensive knitted fabric. Our quality

and innovate products include the following:

1.  Performance series: “UV-Protection”, “Anti-Mosquito”, “Nano water
and oil repellent”

2.  Eco series: organic cotton, complete cotton (made by blending
combing noils and virgin fibers) and original bamboo

3. Moisture management series: our own brands “Invisi.dri™” (with
the ability of picking up moisture from the skin but without showing
any “water stain” marks on the fabric surface), “Comforton™”
(utilizes the “push-and-pull” method to wick perspiration away),
Dr Dry® and “Sukool™” (powerful finishing provides superior
moisture management); use of patent technology of US Cotton Inc.,
interweaving design of waterproofed cotton and general cotton, as well
as “TransDry”, self developed cotton products with quick moisture
absorption capability

4.  Fresh series: our own brand “ActivFresh™ C, B and S” for odor
management and anti-microbial fabrics

5. Synthetic series: durable water-repellent (DWR) fleece, and

compression jersey with different stretch performance
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Capital Investment

The Group is committed in continuous investing in infrastructure, machinery
and information systems according to the operation needs and future
development plan. With more than ten mills and factories within the Group,
regular infrastructure maintenance and machinery upgrade are necessary to
ensure continuous improvement in operations. The Group plans to continue
fine-tuning the enterprise resource planning system SAP during 2015. It
is expected that the overall operational efficiency and productivity will be

improved as a result of the full implementation of new system.

Dividend

In view of the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of HK4 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The total dividend for the year would
be HK4 cents per share as compared with HK2 cents per share for the year

ended 31 December 2013.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders of the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 24 June 2015, it is expected that the payment of final
dividend will be made on or before 21 July 2015 (Tuesday).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2014 are set out below:

Bt % 01

MISIEIZR25m T
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REBEE2014F12A3IRIEFEZF2LER

2014 2013
201445 20134
Statement of Profit or Loss Items B#ERER
(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (BREFRIFTRASINTE %8
otherwise stated) BHUAFETITR)
Revenue ] 6,891,133 6,942,807
Gross Profit EF 714,817 754,637
EBITDA BRI E KA FE 363,665 375,546
Profit for the year EFEEAAN 95,761 100,688
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7N F# A A JE(E B FI 90,590 91,304
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) TREAZREF (BIL) 7.5 7.6
Key Financial Ratios FTEMKEER
Profitability ratios B FIGELD HF
Gross profit margin (%) EME(%) 10.4% 10.9%
EBITDA margin (%) BT E N 55 A FE % (%) 5.3% 5.4%
Expenses as a % of revenue B &R E
Distribution and selling expenses DR EHE B A 2.5% 2.6%
Administrative expenses THER 6.4% 7.5%
Finance costs BE AR 0.5% 0.5%
Asset efficiency BEME
Inventory turnover period (days) FERESR(H) 77 97
Trade and bills receivables eSS &
turnover period (days) EEH(8) 73 67
Trade and bills payables BERERENFIE
turnover period (days) A¥EE (H) 47 59
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

At At
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
M2014F12H31H #2013F12A31H

Asset ratios BEHRZE

Current ratio VIEIP RS 1.9 1.9

Net debt/EBITDA ratio SFETRS BRI E R AT

A E = 0.1 0.5
Revenue XK
The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to S BB £2014F12A31H IEFE K & X 5 E
HK$6,891,133,000 (2013: HK$6,942,807,000). 6,891,133,000/ JT (20134 : 6,942,807,0007
=)

Revenue by business segments EREEEBFSE

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics,
Sewing Threads and Yarns

SUERHE T BAORIY

Production aqd Sales of Garments
RE RIHE KK

FY2014
2014815

85.9%

In current year, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed RAFE SEEZLEF - EREESEM -
fabrics, sewing threads and yarns, generated revenue of HK$5,918,787,000  #& 4l % fx 4 #) & 25 %8 3% 51/5,918,787,0007% 7T
(2013: HK$5,976,440,000), accounted for 85.9% (2013: 86.1%). Revenue (20134 : 5,976,440,000/8 7T) * 1585.9% (2013
from production and sales of garments was HK$972,346,000 (2013: F :86.1% ) HERFEEXN KN EEER
HK$966,367,000), accounted for 14.1% (2013: 13.9%) of the Group’s total 972,346,000/ 7T (20134 : 966,367,000/ 7T ) -
revenue. IEEEEERMEMNIL1% (2013F 1 13.9% ) °
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit 8HE AN R E A

For the year ended 31 December 2014, overall cost of sales of the Group S EEZE2014F12 8311 IFFE 2 BEHEK R
amounted to HK$6,176,316,000 (2013: HK$6,188,170,000) and overall  #%6,176,316,000/% JT (20134 : 6,188,170,0007%
gross profit margin was 10.4% (2013: 10.9%). TT)  BEEERE A10.4% (201345 : 10.9% ) ©
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Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's overall distribution
and selling costs approximately amounted to HK$171,917,000 (2013:
HK$182,787,000), accounted for 2.5% (2013: 2.6%) of the Group's total

revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses approximately amounted to HK$440,515,000 (2013:
HK$518,103,000), accounted for 6.4% (2013: 7.5%) of the Group’s total

revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s EBITDA approximately
amounted to HK$363,665,000 (2013: HK$375,546,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 5.3% (2013: 5.4%).

Finance Cost

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s finance costs
approximately amounted to HK$34,983,000 (2013: HK$36,419,000),
represented 0.5% (2013: 0.5%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$129,249,000 (2013: HK$132,227,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid lease payments. The
Group expects the capital expenditure for the next financial year will be
approximately HK$180,000,000.

Income Tax Expense/Credit

For the year ended 31 December 2014, income tax expense of the
Group approximately amounted to HK$28,068,000 (2013: credit of
HK$14,290,000).
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Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2014, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$90,590,000 (2013: HK$91,304,000) and corresponding
profit margin was 1.3% (2013: 1.3%).

Inventory

The Group’s inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,301,897,000
(2013: HK$1,636,772,000) as at 31 December 2014. The inventory
turnover period was 77 days, a decrease of 20 days compared with 97 days

in 2013.

Trade and Bills Receivables

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted to
HK$1,387,513,000 (2013: HK$1,265,935,000). Trade and bills receivables
turnover period was 73 days, an increase of 6 days compared with 67 days
in 2013.

Trade and Bills Payables

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted to
HK$801,396,000 (2013: HK$1,001,781,000). Trade and bills payables
turnover period was 47 days, a decrease of 12 days compared with 59 days

in 2013.

= FEEREF
EEAEE2014F12A31B I FEZARRBHEA A
&5 2% /90,590,000 7T (20134F : 91,304,000

BT HAEBEARER1.3% (2013F :1.3%) °

Ft
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SEN2014%12A31B 2 HFEDOR
1,301,897,000/% 7t (20134 : 1,636,772,000/8
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SEN2014512A31H 2 € ¥ M RIE R K IE
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,325,623,000 (2013: HK$3,278,647,000). The key figures of financial

position were as follows:

K2014%12A31H
3,325,623,000/% 7T (20134 : 3,278,647,000/8
TT) e MSARR M ERER T
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EeRnPELMERER
CEBMEEFEN

At At

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

M2014F12H31H M2013F12A31H

HK$'000 F&T HK$'000 F#C

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,789,197 1,867,767
Current assets mENE E 3,776,536 4,264,878
Total assets EEBE 5,565,733 6,132,645
Current liabilities e 8 fE 1,957,936 2,271,639
Non-current liabilities EREEE 282,174 582,359
Total liabilities BEEE 2,240,110 2,853,998
Net assets EBEFE 3,325,623 3,278,647

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank

borrowings.

SENZERFRESNENRITHREHENE
NEAEEEHFE MAAHXATEHRMRT
BB
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At 31 December 2014, the principal financial covenant figure/ratios

(according to the banks’ definitions) were as follows:

i B2 20 AT

Fiﬂ
|
E’!.III:

M2014F12A318 T 2EMPBEHOEIE &
(REBRITHER)WT:

At At
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
MA2014%12A31H 2013 12AH31H
Consolidated tangible net worth BEFBEMEE HK$2,977,470,000 HK$2,920,523,000
Consolidated total bank debt to RAERIRITTEEY
consolidated tangible net worth REFEREELD 0.3 0.5
Consolidated EBITDA to A BRI E R A E
consolidated interest expense ERE T B S 10.4 10.3
Consolidated current assets to AR EEY
consolidated current liabilities RAanEa&EL 1.9 1.9
Consolidated capital expenditure HRAEEARAX HK$129,249,000 HK$132,227,000

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had complied with all

financial covenant figure/ratios.

Risk Management

The Group follows stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage

foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sales and the purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and RMB. Since the Group
mainly produces in China, thus we are exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from RMB exposure. As a result of People’s Bank of China
announcing the wider of RMB trading band and the recent strong USD
trend, the Group has reduced the proportion of foreign currency hedging
using forward contracts, and will review the foreign currency hedging

strategy as appropriate in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

M2014%20135F12A31H - "&EE 2 EFREH
BROEIE ek

[\ e 32
AEBEREBRKRFENRREZERRELIN
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In addition, bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars, interests are mainly charged on a floating rate
basis. Despite the slow recovery of the global economy in current year, it is
expected that US interest rates may rise in the second half of coming year.
The Group will continue monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market
and arrange appropriate financial instruments to minimize the interest rate

risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 11,600 full time
employees (2013: 12,800). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employee and on the basis of the salary
trends in various regions, and are reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group's
profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary bonus to its

employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees, and
also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing education
so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to production, selling

and management.

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertainties ahead, the ongoing global recovery is to
substantiate our macro proposition on a positive business environment in
2015. The Board and the management believe that the Group’s marketing
strategy and the above operational measures can play a positive role in the
long-term business development and continuous efficiency improvement, so
that the Group can enjoy higher profitability, stable financial position and a

solid foundation for better performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2014 (the “Year”), the Company has consistently
adopted and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), except
for the deviations as disclosed in this report, as guidelines to reinforce our

corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised 9 members, consisting
of 4 Executive Directors, 2 Non-Executive Directors and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors. On 1 January 2015, Independent Non-Executive
Director, Mr. YANG Shibin resigned and Mr. YING Wei was appointed
as the new Independent Non-Executive Director. On 23 January 2015,
Madam LI Lan retired as the Executive Director and Mr. CHEN Minghong
was appointed as the new Executive Director. The number of Independent
Non-Executive Directors continuously represents one-third of the Board as
required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all the Directors
as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 40 to 44. The
relationships among members of the Board (including financial, business,

family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed.

All Directors entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest one-third or any other number subject to such manner
of rotation as may be required by the Listing Rules or other codes, rules,
and regulations prescribed from time to time by the applicable regulatory
authority, shall retire from office. Article 93 of the Articles also provides that
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in

determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the business operations of the Group in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by formulating strategic
directions and monitoring the financial and management performance of the

Group.

The overall management of the Group’s business was vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business to the executive management team, and focused its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule was
formulated to identify specific matters that shall be reserved to the Board
and those delegated to the management. The Board had given clear
directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to the
Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other

applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

5 Board meetings were held and regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly intervals during the Year. Each of the Directors
has actively participated in each meeting in person, via telephone or
videoconferencing. The Board consents were given by-vote at the Board

meetings.

The dates of 2014 regular Board meetings were determined in 2013 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow

Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the Company Secretary who
regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of his/her respective duties,
might take independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the
Company’s expense. The availability of professional advice extended to 3
other committees. Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting documents, were available to all
Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors

for their comment and record respectively.
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If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual Director had to declare his/her interest and was
required to abstain from voting on any matter in which he/she or any of his/
her associates had a material interest and that he/she shall not be counted
in the quorum present at the Board meeting. Such matters were considered

at a Board meeting attended by Independent Non-Executive Directors who

had no material interest in the transaction.

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee EENE

Meetings and General Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, the
Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee meetings, the
Nomination Committee meetings and the general meetings during the Year

are set out in the following table:

o144
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend during the Year
AEERESCHEAY SEREEZEE

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
B EZ® ERZEE® FHZEE ERZEE® RRBFA®
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. ZHAO Yao HRTAE 5/5 - - - 171
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor BERR%E 5/5 - - - 11
Madam LI Lan FHLL
(retired on 23 January 2015) (FA2015F1 A23H E1T) 5/5 - - 212 11
Mr. GONG Zhengyi BAEELE 5/5 - 4/4 - 11
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Dr. YEN Gordon BEHEL 5/5 - - - 11
Mr. Zhang Chong RELE 5/5 3/4 - - in
Independent non-executive Directors B HEHTTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung HEIRELE 55 4/4 4/4 - 11
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, $8s, /P KB4 #1222 P41 5/5 4/4 - 2/2 171
Mr. YANG Shibin BHERE
(resigned on 1 January 2015) (R2015F1A1REHT) 5/5 - 444 22 171
Date of the meetings 2wAH 21/3/2014 10/1/2014 20/3/2014 17132014 25/6/2014
30/4/2014 17/3/2014 71412014 10/11/2014
25/6/2014 10/7/2014 20/6/2014
26/8/2014 14/8/2014 10/11/2014

14/11/2014
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Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the
duties and responsibilities as a Director, the relevant laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and
business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided to

newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness

of good corporate governance practices.

Each of the Directors confirms that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the
Year, each of the Directors named below has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh his/her knowledge
and skills and provided a record of training to the Company:
Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Note)
Executive Directors
Mr. ZHAO Yao
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor
Madam LI Lan

(retired on 23 January 2015)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Non-executive Directors
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. Zhang Chong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Mr. YANG Shibin
(resigned on 1 January 2015)

Note:

(a)  corporate governance

(b)  regulatory, risk management

(c)  finance, business operation/management
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Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of

potential legal action against the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEOQ")

From 21 March 2014 to 13 November 2014, Madam LI Lan undertook
both roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company, details of which were set
out in the announcement dated 21 March 2014. Besides, with effect from
23 January 2015, the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company,
Mr. ZHAO Yao, takes up the position of CEO of the Company, details of
which were set out in the announcement dated 23 January 2015. This
deviates from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that
the responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should
be divided. However, having considered the current status of the Group,
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person enables the Group to more efficiently plan its overall strategy and
achieve the budgeted target. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority under this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board
which comprises experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with

sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

All the existing Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were appointed for a specific term. Each of the Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of 1 year, subject to
renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the

Company in accordance with the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board considered that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent and have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in

accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with the required standards set

out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established 3 committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, each with a specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference
have been approved and reviewed by the Board and were updated with
reference to the CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each
of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee have been posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretary took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of these committees was reported to the Board

regularly.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors, 2) to review and approve
the Company’s remuneration policy and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives for the Board
for approval. The Company’s remuneration policy is to provide a competitive
level of remuneration in accordance with current market conditions to attract

and motivate the Directors and staff for their contribution.

The Remuneration Committee, as at the date of this annual report,
comprises 1 Executive Director and 2 Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. GONG Zhengyi, Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei
(appointed on 1 January 2015), and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised 1 Executive
Director and 2 Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. GONG
Zhengyi, Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YANG Shibin (resigned on 1 January
2015), and was chaired by Mr. YANG Shibin. The Remuneration Committee
held 4 meetings during the Year and details of attendance are shown in the
table on page 29. A summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee

during the Year is set out as follows:

° made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Director, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for

loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed their

performance;

o reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals with reference to the Board’s

corporate goals and objectives; and

° ensured that no Director or any of respective associates is involved in

deciding their respective remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the Executive Committee at least annually, 2) to
identify and recommend suitably qualified candidates as new director(s)
or to fill Board vacancies as they arise and to assess candidates as new
member(s) of the Executive Committee or to fill Committee vacancies as they

arise, for the approval of the Board.
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Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether the
relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills and knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural
background and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the
policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”) as adopted by the Board and

summarised as follows:

Purpose

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable

and balanced development of the Company.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualification, regional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and other experience of Directors. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected

candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Policy and

recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

The Nomination Committee, as at the date of this annual report, comprises
1 Executive Director and 2 Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. ZHAO Yao, Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, /P and Mr. YING Wei
(appointed on 1 January 2015) and is chaired by Mr. ZHAO Yao.
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised 1 Executive Director
and 2 Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Madam LI Lan (retired
on 23 January 2015), Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SB8S, Jp and Mr. YANG
Shibin (resigned on 1 January 2015), and was chaired by Madam LI Lan.
The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the Year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 29. A summary of the work of the

Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follow:

° made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and assess independence of Independent

Non-Executive Directors;

° reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

. reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the

appointment of new directors to the Board. The Committee will first consider

necessary changes in respect of the structure, size and diversity of the

Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by considering their professional

knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal

skills and time commitments, and makes recommendations to the Board
for decision. The nomination criteria also include the nominee’s skills and

experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s business.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are to consider the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor the integrity of the Group’s
financial statements with focus on the changes in accounting policies and
practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit adjustments, going
concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to review the

Group's financial reporting system and internal control procedures.
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During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprises 1 Non-Executive Director and 2 Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Chong, Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr.
CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, Jp and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the Year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 29. A summary of the work of the

Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of external auditors, and approved the audit fee and

terms of engagement of the external auditors;

° reviewed and monitored external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, and discussed with external auditors before
audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

° reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report,
and reviewed significant financial reporting judgments contained in

them;

o reviewed financial controls, internal controls and risk management

systems;

o discussed the internal control system with management to ensure
that the management had performed its duty to achieve an effective
internal control system. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes

and budget of accounting and financial reporting function;

o ensured co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and
ensured that internal audit function was adequately resourced and had
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored

its effectiveness;

° reviewed financial and accounting policies and practices; and
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o reviewed external auditors’ management letter, any material queries
raised by auditors to management regarding the accounting records,

financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the Year, the fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, in respect of audit
and non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$3,090,000 and
HK$856,000 respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of review,

consultancy and taxation services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The external
auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages

b6 and 57.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and has
conducted reviews on its effectiveness through convening meetings regularly

to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties for
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulations
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and management; and (c)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the Corporate

Governance Report).
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARSE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below
is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting (the “EGM”) and put forward proposals at general meetings.

Convening an EGM

Pursuant to Sections 566-569 of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a
right to vote a general meetings, may by written request authenticated by the
shareholder making it and sent to the Company, to require the Directors to

call a meeting.

The written request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (ii) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be

moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement and such meeting must be held

within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

If the written request received by the Company identify a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice
of the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may
be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of which notice has been
included in such notice of meeting. If the resolution to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting,
the text of the resolution and specifies the intention to propose the resolution

as a special resolution.

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the written request
mentioned above, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,

may themselves call a general meeting.
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The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the

Directors.

The business that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of

which notice has been included in the notice of meeting.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must

be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder may
request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other

business to be dealt with in any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a written request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at
the meeting; or (ii) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on

a proposed resolution at the meeting.

The written request must identify the statement to be circulated,
authenticated by the person(s) making it, and received by the Company at
least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The expenses of circulating such
statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s) who requested the circulation
of the statement unless the Company resolves otherwise or (i) the meeting
to which the requests related is an annual general meeting of the Company;
and (ii) requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement
are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement

at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Representative of the Company whose contact details are shown under

“Shareholder Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the Year.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEENSREBAERBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director on 27 November 2012,
and as the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO
of the Company on 23 January 2015. Mr. Zhao has almost 27 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined the predecessor of Chinatex
(FR Bl % & B 2 F]) (“Chinatex”),
Import and Export Corporation* (FF B 45 4% @3 H O 422 7)) (“General

Corporation* China National Textiles
Corporation”) in 1987 and held positions as the Assistant President of
Chinatex, the General Manager of Asset Management Department of
Chinatex, Chairman and General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets
(hHEREEEERRAR),
Chinatex Tianyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.* (RS 4 KT E R
[R72 7)) , General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.*
(her BB A R), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited,
(EAELESBER
Chairman of Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( /&

Management Co., Ltd.* General Manager of

Chairman of Huasheng Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.*
NCID
ERE LiEKBARAR), Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron
FREERAERBEERAF), Financial
Manager of Wah Gar Knitwear Factory Company Limited, General Manager
(BN P EYERRRA
A]) and Vice President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* ( BZxA AR &4t )

a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. Zhao graduated with a diploma in industrial

Science & Technology Co., Ltd.* (

of Suzhou Zhongfa Property Management Co., Ltd.*

accounting from Renmin University of China in 1987. In December 2013,

Mr. Zhao obtained a Senior Management Master Degree of Business

Administration issued by University of Texas at Arlington.

* For identification purpose only
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 49, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an Executive Director in 2004. He was promoted to
Executive Director and Group General Manager in 2009 and appointed as
Group Managing Director in May 2011. Mr. HA has been appointed as Vice-
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in June
2012. He has ceased to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
21 March 2014. He serves as an Assistant Chairman of the Hong Kong
Jiangyin Trade Association; a Director of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Limited; a Director of HK Wuxi Trade Association; a Founding
Member of the Hong Kong Professionals & Senior Executives Association
and a Member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. He has been
accredited as Honorary Citizen of Jiangmen City in the PRC; and was also
awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” from the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries in 2010. He possesses a degree in Production
Engineering from Coventry University, UK. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA
has over 12 years of operations and management experience in the garment
trading and manufacturing industry. Mr. HA is the brother-in-law of Dr. Yen

Gordon.

Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 60, was appointed as an Executive Director and the member of the
Remuneration Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. Gong is currently the General
Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, a subsidiary of Chinatex.
Mr. Gong has almost 30 years of experience in the textile industry. He
joined the predecessor of Chinatex, the General Corporation, in 1984 and
served as General Manager of Chinatex Raw Materials International Trading
Corporation, a subsidiary of Chinatex. He also held position as General
Manager of Chinatex (Australia) Wool Company Proprietary Limited, a
subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. Gong graduated from Hebei University, China,
Faculty of Chinese Studies with a major in Chinese Literature in 1979. He
obtained a Certificate of Marketing and Management in Macquarie Graduate
School of Management, Australia in 1997. Mr. Gong also has obtained the

qualification of Foreign Trade Management Economist.

* For identification purpose only
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHEN Minghong

Executive Director

Aged 47, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director for the period from
6 June 2012 to 27 November 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Chen has almost 22 years of experience in
the textiles industry. He is currently the General Manager of Chinatex Cotton
Import and Export Corporation® ( R #5#R7E# H B2 F]) (“Chinatex Cotton”),
a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. Chen joined the predecessor of Chinatex, the
General Corporation in March 1993. He served successively as the Deputy
Manager and Manager of Cotton Department of Chinatex Cotton, Assistant
to General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Cotton. Mr.
Chen graduated with a Bachelor of Arts from the Department of Foreign

Languages of Tsinghua University in 1989.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-Executive Director

Aged 45, joined the Group in 1999 as the Assistant to the Chairman
and was promoted to an Executive Director in 2004, then assumed the
additional role of Chief Financial Officer in 2012. He was appointed
as a Non-Executive Director of the Group on 31 May 2013. Dr. Yen is
currently the Managing Director of Radiant Venture Capital Limited. He
also serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of Hopewell Holdings Limited. Dr. Yen is a
Member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China; Member of the
Textile Advisory Board to the Trade & Industry Department; Chairman of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles; Director of GS1 HK Limited; and
Director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce. He holds a
Bachelor degree in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University, USA;
a Master degree in Business Administration from McGill University, Canada
and a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Yen has extensive
experience in the infrastructure sector. Dr. Yen is the brother-in-law of Mr.

HA Kam On, Victor.

* For identification purpose only
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Aged 44, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and the member of
the Audit Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. Zhang is currently the General
Manager of Investment Management Department of Chinatex. Mr. Zhang
has over 19 years of experience in the textiles industry. He joined the
predecessor of Chinatex, the General Corporation in 1995 and held positions
as the General Manager of Strategy Department, Deputy General Manager
of Strategy Department and General Manager of Investment Department of
Chinatex, Deputy General Manager of Enterprise Management Department
of Chinatex, Officer of Policy Research Office and Assistant of Manager
Office of General Corporation. Mr. Zhang graduated with a Master degree
in Business Management from the Faculty of Business Administration,
University of International Business and Economics, China in 1995. Mr.
/Zhang has completed an Executive Master in Business Administration
(EMBA) studying at China Europe International Business School (CEIBS) in
2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Independent Non-executive Director

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 64, joined the Group’s Board in 1993 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Ng is a practising accountant. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Universe International Holdings
Limited until his retirement on 2 December 2013 and a Non-Executive
Director of Wah Ha Reality Company Limited, both of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and
a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma
in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. Ng is a
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial

Planners.
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Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, sss, sp

Independent Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 64, joined the Group’s Board in 2004 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. Chow has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for the past 35 years and is a partner in the law firm, Messrs. Peter C.
Wong, Chow & Chow. He is a Non-Executive Director of Kingmaker Footwear
Holdings Limited, and Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, companies
listed in Hong Kong. He also sits on the board of The Link Management
Limited which manages The Link Real Estate Investment Trust. For the
period from June 2005 to July 2011, Mr. Chow was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited,
a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow was the Chairman of the Process
Review Panel for the Securities and Futures Commission until 31 October
2012. He is the Deputy Chairman of Appeal Board on Public Meetings
and Processions and Chairman of Process Review Panel for the Financial
Reporting Council. He is also a Member of National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and Deputy Chairman of

the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr. YING Wei

Independent non-executive Director

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee on 1 January 2015. Mr. Ying holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor Degree
in Economics from the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Commerce). He is a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from 1989
to 2007, Mr. Ying served as an Executive Director and Vice President of
China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Between 2007 and
2009, he served as Vice President of China Water Affairs Group Limited,
a company listed in Hong Kong. From 21 July 2008 to 30 July 2009, he
held the position of an Executive Director and President of China Botanic
Development Holdings Limited (now re-named as China Water Property
Group Limited), a company listed in Hong Kong. From 28 December 2012
to 24 March 2014, he served as an Independent Non-Executive Director
of China Public Procurement Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
Ying is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of CHTC Fong's
Industries Company Limited and the Chairman and a Non-Executive
director of New Focus Auto Tech Holdings Limited, both of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Ying is also the operating partner of CDH

Investments.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses including the
production and sale of knitted fabric, garments and the sale of sewing
threads. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 58 and
59. No interim dividend was declared for the period ended 30 June 2014.
The Director now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents
per share to the shareholders on the register of members on 8 July 2015,
amounting to HK$48,122,000, and the retention of the remaining profit for

the year.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders of the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”) to be held on 24 June 2015, it is expected that the
payment of final dividend will be made on or before 21 July 2015 (Tuesday).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out in page 55.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$128,754,000 to property,
plant and equipment which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the

Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set out in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2014 amounted to HK$1,264,618,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$1,488,717,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHAO Yao (appointed as Chairman on 14 November 2014
and CEO on 23 January 2015)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman)

Madam LI Lan (retired on 23 January 2015)

Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Mr. CHEN Minghong (appointed on 23 January 2015)

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Mr. YANG Shibin (resigned on 1 January 2015)
Mr. YING Wei (appointed on 1 January 2015)

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, Article 93 and Article
102(A) of the Articles, Mr. ZHAO Yao, Mr. CHEN Minghong, Dr. YEN Gordon,
Mr. Ng Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei will retire and, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no Director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on

pages 40 to 44 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EEvESRER

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the Directors 2014412 A31H @ BiFE (AR Al H#E 5 M HE
and chief executive and their respective associates in the shares of the {§HI 3521 B F1F & 2 &M FTEC 8% sl (b)IR1E
Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares in and debentures of the YESFRIZEBABIT R EERITHEFHN
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV HE&Z7HMEATAAR T RHBE LR (A
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SF0”)), (a) as recorded in the BE NI EEAIEXVE T T2 ME) ZAR
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of  BIIX ([RX(D]) ~ ABRARR ) REREE PR 2 #
the SFO, or (b) as otherwise notified to the Stock Exchange pursuant to the — zRaiAB 40T

Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares: R RABERG T EIER:

Approximate %
of the issued
share capital

Name of Director Number of Shares Capacity HIEEBITRA
EEpE KRG EE &4 Bk
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 91,521,096 Beneficial owner 7.61
Rk EnEA A
11,564,000 Spouse interests 0.96
(Note) B s
(Hz)
Dr. YEN Gordon 6,400,000 Beneficial owner 0.53
BEEE L BEnEA A
Note: Hat -

As at 31 December 2014, Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria, spouse of Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor ~ /20144128310 Atz + (BN ERL £ 2 B B) F
held 11,564,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor, spouse of Ms. Law Ho 11,564,000 10 (1EABEZHEEAN) - BESRLRLERER
Suen, Victoria, is deemed to be interested in 11,564,000 Shares held by Ms. Law Ho Suen, et Z BB WARER B e X #5748 2 11,564,0000% f%
Victoria. DB RER -
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Long positions in underlying Shares — Share options:

Annual Report 2014

RO FR B —BIRE:

Number of
Name of director Date of grant Exercise period share options
EEng B 1T1EH BRERE
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 17.09.2010 17.03.2014 - 17.03.2017 4,600,000
BRI E (Note 1)
(K7at1)
18.08.2011 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 3,300,000
(Note 2)
(Hat2)
Dr. YEN Gordon 18.08.2011 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 3,300,000
ERESIE L (Notes 2)
(Kiit2)
Notes: Biazt -

1. 30% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017, up
to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017
and all share options are exercisable from 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017.

2. 20% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017, up
to 40% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017,
up to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2014 to 18 August
2017, up to 80% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2015 to 18
August 2017 and all share options are exercisable from 19 August 2016 to 18 August
2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor
their respective associates had any interests or short positions in any
Shares, underlying Shares in and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a)
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

1. M201443A178BE201743A178 » AJ1T{#30% R
1 201583178 £201743A178 ' & Z AI{T{F
60%HE A% 1 : & 201693 A17H E201743A178
AT AT B AR

2. 201248 HA19A 20178 A 18R * AI1T{H20% 5 %
1 201348 198 201748 A 188 ' & Z Al {T{#
40% B RS 4 - A2014F8 A 19H £201748A18H * &
Z A 1T{F60% B AL HE : 201548 198 £201748 A
18H » &Z AITTEB0% B : S 2016F8H19H &
201748 A188  AITT{EFT B BEAR 4% -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”) and 20 January 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”) respectively.
Particulars and movements of the Company’s share option schemes
including the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during the Year, are set

out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
above, in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

DIRECTORS’

B ESTE

o147 s R

REPORT
EEEHRE

A B 200241 250 R20114E1 A20R 4
BT 8 (551 A 20024 512 ] & [20114F
FHE]) AN R AR & (B 1E200246 5 & R
2011F &1 8]) 2B RRAFEZ Z8)  HNiRE

B AR M RE33

FERRREMRRES

M2014F12 4310  BEBEA R RIRES KBAE K
PIEBCEMTFE 2 ETERREMEH B EX
FTEBEANBESRITHER ZERSIN BEA
TRAARIRG RABBRGDPEAERIAR W

T

Rty RARRE IR Wi BB :

Approximate %

of the issued
share capital

K14
Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity ERITRA
FTERRERB KR4 EE =g Bokt
Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) 433,098,000 Interest of controlled corporation 36.00
PEGHEEAT ([FE5]) (Notes 1 and 2) 2= E B A
(KtiE1%2)
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Co., 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 34.00
Ltd. (“Yieldfull”) (Note 1) EnEA A
PHREREERHBRAR (K1at1)
(r&agl)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment 409,036,000 Interest of controlled corporation 34.00
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui”) (Note 1) TH A E R S
PR EEEARETAA (K1at1)
([458E])
Mr. HA Chung Fong 42,292,000 Beneficial owner 12.00
EMFRE (Note 3) EmEAA
(#17%3)
102,108,948 Other interests
(Notes 3 and 5) HibtEzs
(K1:#3%5)

* For identification purpose only

Y EHEF
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Approximate %
of the issued
share capital

#1h
Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity BRITRA
FTERRER REE 514 Aotk
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 144,400,948 Spouse interests 12.00
Bk + (Note 3) B (B fE i
(K13£3)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 102,108,948 Beneficial owner 8.49
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 4 and 5) EmEA A
(K1at455)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 102,108,948 Interest of controlled corporation 8.49
(“Island Treasure”) (Notes 4 and 5) EHEB RS
(Kat4k5)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 102,108,948 Trustee 8.49
M (FB)BRAR ([RF]) (Notes 4 and 5) A
(Kizt4k5)
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles 102,108,948 Interest of controlled corporation 8.49
TERLE (Notes 4 and 5) 72 1) [ A
(K1at455)
Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria 11,564,000 Beneficial owner 0.96
A e+ EmEAA
91,521,096 Spouse interests 7.61
(Note 6) Pic (5 7
(Krzr6)
Notes: Biat -

Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui and Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex. Therefore, each of Jinhui and Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Yieldfull.

As at 31 December 2014, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited held 24,062,000 Shares
as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinatex. Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinatex (H.K.)
Holding Limited.

Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Mr. HA Chung Fong.

Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure, Island Treasure is a
wholly-owned subsidiary by Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by Mr. WONG
Tak Leung, Charles. Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and Mr. WONG Tak
Leung, Charles is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Super Brilliance.

BRERBEZEZEWBAT MBER/THZEEN
BB #ERTHEBRGIERERENF
et 2 H o

R2014% 128310 & (BB ERERIBFE
24,062,000/ e th (EREZEAAN) ~#H (Fi)
BERARARRTHZEZEMB R - Eit - PHK
BIEEA DS (B ERAR R BPTRRD 2 s -

WKL T REMRFT REZRE AMNEFEEEE
RIT SR A PR AR 2 f s o

Super Brilliance&lsland Treasurez 2 &M B A &)
Island Treasure B Mz 2 EMB AR MEBRLLE
BAZ 2R - B - Island Treasure * 2281 &
FREREES BWRIEREA Super BrillianceFT AR 1
ZHE e
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5. Onwide is the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA Chung
Fong for the benefit of his family.

6. Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria, spouse of Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2014.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, is a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in
this annual report and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2014 or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the continuing connected
transactions entered into during the Year are set out in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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The Company’s auditor has confirmed that all of the continuing connected
transactions set out under note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
(a) have been approved by the Board; (b) are in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) have been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the transactions;
and (d) have not exceeded the respective cap amounts in respect of each of

the continuing connected transactions.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have also reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the above continuing

connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all Independent Non-
Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The Remuneration Committee
will review and approve the remuneration policy to be recommended to the

Directors of the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Directors of the Board
for approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any of his

associates and executives, is involved in dealing with his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements and under heading “Share

Option Schemes” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the

business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five

largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest customers or suppliers.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling

HK$463,000 (2013: HK$611,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 39.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares throughout the

Year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO

Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
20 March 2015
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

M2014F12A31H REBKREMENFBNT

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
o B HEFH REg AEBANER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit Al on 7/F,, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, FHIFRE BELMRAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
B R ZEBZE 2 3K 29-395%
RETERNE
SIEA2ZE R7IEALZE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and Medium-term land Office 100%
12, Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights MAE
Shenzhen, the PRC oh 8 1t 3 (8
wh BRI T 4% 8 8 R K R R B AR B R
S5 BEISARIE 1
A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08%= 107112
Factory Nos. 5-6, 9 and 11 Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BEERAE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, B+ pb {5 B A

Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
FENT & 2R R I G T B = S 1566-685%
@ N5E6 - ORIISHE
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TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 58 to 172, which comprise the consolidated and
Company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32 by operation of the transitional and saving
provisions in Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 32 by operation of the transitional and saving provisions set out in
Section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap.
622, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 32.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number PO4659

Hong Kong, 20 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERsREMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # %2014 12A31R8FFE

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes [ HK$’000 F#&T HK$'000 F%&T
Revenue B 6 6,891,133 6,942,807
Cost of sales HER A (6,176,316) (6,188,170)
Gross profit EF 714,817 754,637
Other income H b Ug A 78,672 45,573
Other gains and losses EH b ek K BB (26,201) 23,497
Distribution and selling expenses DM IEEE R (171,917) (182,787)
Administrative expenses 1T ERA (440,515) (518,103)
Finance costs A& Ak A 7 (34,983) (36,419)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB R R Z B 40 4,694 -
Share of loss of an associate i —MBERR 2
&8 18 (738) -
Profit before taxation R %t AT 2 A 123,829 86,398
Income tax Frig i 8 (28,068) 14,290
Profit for the year EFEEEF 9 95,761 100,688
Profit for the year attributable to: BHRFERA:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE P =N 90,590 91,304
Non-controlling interests IEVE RS 5,171 9,384
95,761 100,688
HK cents &1l HK cents &1l
Earnings per share BlRAEF
Basic and diluted EARRE#E 12 7.5 7.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERAMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # %2014 12A31H L5 E

2014
20145
Notes /7% HK$’000 F#&T

2013
20134
HK$'000 F% T

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment of
translation reserve upon disposal of

a subsidiary

Other comprehensive (expense)/income

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

EFEAF 9 95,761 100,688
Hip 2wz
(R E)
HETREEHHEE
BmoEE :
BREFINEBEEZ
PE X =% (2,286) 18,045
& — R B A AR
PE 5 i 2
B OAARE 40 (1,435) -
EFEEEMEMA
(Ax) W (3,721) 18,045
REFEE2EWSEE
92,040 118,733
JE(RRFE 2
FX =
VIN/NETEZ =N 88,125 107,575
JEE AR E 25 3,915 11,158
92,040 118,733
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR R 3R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 720144 12H31H

At 31 December 2014

Annual Report 2014

At 31 December 2013

R2014%12831H R2013612A31H
Notes Bzt HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F& T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 14 55,094 33,800
Property, plant and equipment ER LY E T 15 1,520,174 1,624,510
Prepaid lease payments - non-current portion BREEFE-FERGHH 16 104,763 107,784
Other intangible assets HBYEE 17 27,646 30,284
Interests in an associate R—TEE R Az R 18 15,466 -
Investment in life insurance policies AESRBREZEE 21 37,850 37,346
Deferred tax assets EREHIEEE 20 28,204 34,043
1,789,197 1,867,767
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 1,301,897 1,636,772
Trade and bills receivables EERZERENGE 23 1,387,513 1,265,935
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRHE &ReRk
H A YR 24 124,419 191,146
Prepaid lease payments — current portion BRBEFE-RHHH 16 2,610 2,610
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 25 = 14,170
Tax recoverable A e R A 2,573 4,282
Short-term bank deposits RERTER 26 509,513 346,889
Bank balances and cash BITEHBRRSE 26 448,011 803,074
3,776,536 4,264,878
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables EENZERENTE 27 801,396 1,001,781
Other payables and accruals BN FBREGER 28 269,688 339,799
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders RIEERR IR B 29 80,100 80,100
Deferred income — current portion b O N 30 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA 25 1,686 -
Tax payable FEfHE 17,338 9,555
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year R REMEE ——FER T 31 784,831 838,946
Bank overdrafts BITES 31 1,439 -
1,957,936 2,271,639
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,818,600 1,993,239
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBEE 3,607,797 3,861,006
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANEI!AL POSI\TIO%

wh 3 .

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 720144 12H31H

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

M2014%12A31H R2013F12A31H
Notes fifi# HK$'000 & HK$000 &7
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income — non-current portion BERWA—EREBDH 30 62,218 63,676
Bank and other borrowings - due after one year BOREMEE-—FREH 31 213,669 516,598
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERBERE 20 6,287 2,085
282,174 582,359
Net assets EEFE 3,325,623 3,278,647
Capital and reserves EXRfGEE
Share capital: nominal value A EE 32 240,609
Share premium and capital redemption reserve BHEEREAEERE 621,602
Share capital (2013: Share capital and R (20134 : B AN
statutory reserves) FERE) 32 862,211 862,211
Other reserves Hih e 2,320,317 2,255,009
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ANEHEEAEGES 3,182,528 3,117,220
Non-controlling interests R 143,095 161,427
Total equity ERdE 3,325,623 3,278,647

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 172 were approved

1728 MR A P BHEKR D MN201553 H20R

£58%
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2015 and HMEZ@@EBRBERN TH TNIIEERKRE
==

are signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO Yao HA Kam On
fichd FHRR
Director Director

EFE EFE
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 7 AR R 3=

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 720144 12H31H

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

RW2014%12A31H #2013F12A31H
Notes fifi# HK$'000 & HK$000 57T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VER P 15 5,495 6,564
Investment in life insurance policies AERBREZKE 21 37,850 37,346
Investments in subsidiaries HBARIRE 19 30,849 32,768
74,194 76,678
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BEHRE ek
Hi R 24 4,054 4311
Amounts due from subsidiaries B R AT RHE 19 3,001,345 3,171,311
Derivative financial instruments fTHEERBTE 25 = 12,238
Tax recoverable AREFHIE 256 192
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRS 26 29,139 125,897
3,034,794 3,313,949
Current liabilities nEBEE
Other payables and accruals HEth BN RBREER 28 10,867 9,638
Amounts due to subsidiaries REBARZIE 19 942,023 1,000,810
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA 25 1,686 -
Tax payable ERHE - -
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year  $R1TREMEE ——FER T 31 12,737 15,461
967,313 1,025,909
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,067,481 2,288,040

Total assets less current liabilities LBEAERABER 2,141,675 2,364,718
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR 3

7

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014 720144 12H31H

At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

R2014%12A31H R2013F12H31H
Notes fifi# HK$'000 & HK$'000 F %71
Non-current liability knBaE
Deferred tax liabilities ERRIEEE 20 = 187
- 187
Net assets EEFE 2,141,675 2,364,531
Capital and reserves EXRfEE
Share capital: nominal value BRA: EE 32 240,609
Share premium and capital redemption reserve BHREREAELHE 34 621,602
Share capital (2013: Share capital and IR (20134 : A R
statutory reserves) EERE) 32 862,211 862,211
Other reserves H A 34 1,279,464 1,502,320
Total equity EEAE 2,141,675 2,364,531
ZHAO Yao HA Kam On
R Bz
Director Director
EE EoE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
32z
RERBESER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #HZE2014F12A31HI1IFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
AARHEEAER
Capital Share Non-
Share Share redemption Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
&x BiRE FER
BAE  ROEE BERE EXLREE RE iERE  EERA #E Bn RBRAE
HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000 — HKS000 — HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FHET FET FET FET FHET FET FET
(note)
(Hi#t)
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1R 240,609 621,392 210 (49,318) 13,663 43,302 2,139,864 3,009,722 170,058 3,179,780
Exchange differences BEBIEBELL
arising on translation of ERER
foreign operations - - - 16,271 - - - 16,271 1,774 18,045
Profit for the year 2EERF - - - - - - 91,304 91,304 9,384 100,688
Total comprehensive income TEEERKERE
for the year - - - 16,271 - - 91,304 107,575 11,158 118,733
Equity-settled share-based DEREENRN A
payments reverse B2 MR - - - - 77 - - (77 - (77)
Transfer Eold - - - - - 36877  (36,877) - - -
Dividends paid to non- ERRETFHERRE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - (19,725) (19,725)
Acquisition of additional YR AN AR
interests in existing subsidiary ~ EBSMEZ - - - - - - - - (64) (64)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12A318 240,609 621,392 210 (33,047) 13,586 80,179 2,194,291 3,117,220 161,427 3,278,647
Exchange differences BEBINEBEEL
arising on translation of ERERE
foreign operations - = = (1,030) - - - (1,030) (1,256) (2,286)
Reclassification adjustment of & —EM B2 A E
translation reserve ERFEE
upon disposal of a subsidiary ~ EF 5 EHE
(Note 40) (H15#40) - - - (1,435) - = - (1,435) - (1,435)
Profit for the year EEERTA - - - - = = 90,590 90,590 5,171 95,761
Total comprehensive (expense)) EFE 2@ (HxX),/
income for the year Wz aE = = - (2,465) - = 90,590 88,125 3,915 92,040
Transfer upon abolition of 20145330 Bk
nominal value of shares and B EERERE
capital redemption reserve on B[ 1A 2 B
3 March 2014 (Note 32) (Hizt32) 621,602  (621,392) (210) - - - - - - -
Equity-settled share-based IERZEE RN A
payments EW 27 = = = - 1,244 - = 1,244 - 1,244
Dividends paid ERKE = = = = = - (24,061) (24,061) - (24,061)
Transfer Eeled - - - - - (19) 19 - = -
Dividends paid to non- ERRETFHERRE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - (22,247) (22,247)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 862,211 - = (35,512) 14,830 80,160 2,260,839 3,182,528 143,095 3,325,623

Note:

The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of profit

after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported under the

PRC statutory financial statements. According to the provision of the articles of

association of the subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only be used for making

up losses, capitalisation into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s

operation and for the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff and workers.

EE

EEREEE TEPEARKME (THE]) K

BRANEFRPEEEMBRENSRERER
BZEMBARE THENRERTIBENSRE-
RIEITB A R ARG ERAA IR AT EER
RRBMER BRRA ExEBENBERATNE
BEMBARE IR T AR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # %2014 12H31H L&

2014 2013
20145 2013F
Note Hii# HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 T/# 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEAMBHNAERE
Profit before taxation B AT & A 123,829 86,398
Adjustments for: R
Compensation income for factory demolishment BB b 2 BRI (8,930) -
Government grants PR (7,349) (766)
Amortisation of deferred income R TR\ B 5 8 (1,458) (1,458)
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZTE 2,198 246
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MmE BEREEINE 202,084 259,258
Amortisation of other intangible assets HhBYEE 2 & 3,133 -
Equity-settled share-based payments/(reversal) DEREE RN BERE
3/ (Bm) 1,244 (77)
Finance costs BB RN 34,983 36,419
Interest income FIEWA (17,903) (7,411)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE/AHNE BER
plant and equipment and SERBEAEERE
prepaid lease payments BE 2,187 12,483
Gain on acquisition of additional interests in an WERBNBLA
existing subsidiary BOMER 2 Wz - (60)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEKE 40 (4,694) -
Share of loss of an associate FEME— & D AEE 738 -
Impairment loss reversed on EERERRNRELZ
trade and bills receivables, net AEBXERFE (2,935) (2,245)
Release of prepaid lease payments BREEREED 2,609 2,609
Operating profit before working capital changes MEESE A 2 2ERT 329,736 385,39
Decrease/(increase) in inventories "BEZRED /(M) 334,662 (295,219)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables ~ L¥ R EFEWFIE Y
(Em)/wL (123,386) 712
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and AR FUE k4 R EM
other receivables EATIEZ D,/ (1) 18,716 (57,932)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and bills payables EEREBRRENTEL
(R4) /% (196,632) 206,475
Decrease in other payables and accruals HitENFEREFER
o (57,258) (10,407)
Cash generated from operations EEMB R 305,838 249,025
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBHEH (2,718) (2,676)
Overseas tax paid BT Es B (5,816) (12,802)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEREMBNRSEE 297,304 233,547
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COESOLlDATEED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
:%:': (=] ‘I‘Eﬁ‘;ﬁiﬁ
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 # Z£2014%F12H31HItFE
2014 2013
20145 2013%
Notes fifi HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 &
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEBEMENREEFE 297,304 233,547
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEFMENRERE
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HENBRRMEHE 40 23,573 -
Interest received BUF & 17,861 9,022
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWSE BBERRER
equipment and prepaid lease payments BRAERERERE 4,708 4,550
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME HERSE 15 (128,754) (101,943)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEEMBVEAE 17 (495) (3,624)
Net movement in derivative financial instruments ~ #T4&¢RITANEHFE 15,856 (27,163)
Compensation income for factory BURBE R 2 B ERA
demolishment received 8,930 -
Government grants received BB AT R B 7,349 766
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEFMANREEFE (50,972) (118,392)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEFEFMENRSRE
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTREMEE (2,536,449) (2,835,059)
Interest paid BERFE (33,502) (36,332)
Payment for acquisition of additional shares from 3t A1 FE 12 AR A% SR A% BE AR 1)
non-controlling shareholders T - 4)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BERARETFIERBRE (22,247) (19,725)
Dividends paid ENRE (24,061) -
New bank and other borrowings raised NEEZROREMEE 2,177,536 2,714,950
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEBEEFMANESFE (438,723) (176,170)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReREARELEEMN
CASH EQUIVALENTS HORE (192,391) (61,015)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REFERRRNRER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEBREER 1,149,963 1,210,292
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON EXBHUBREREEARSE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BHENFE (1,487) 686
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEERERNREER
AT END OF THE YEAR ZRREER 956,085 1,149,963
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF BeRSRARGBEELERN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: ki
Short-term bank deposits RHRTEX 509,513 346,839
Bank balances and cash BITEHBRAE 448,011 803,074
Bank overdrafts RITES (1,439) -
956,085 1,149,963
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE R RHEE
31 December 2014 2014412 A31H
1. GENERAL 1. &N

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and ~ ANA®AEESBSMA A AR AR QT MK
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the MR EBHMEXZSHMAR AT ([BAT]) Fre
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal — ZN 2 &) #5137 % 2 dth 31k N2 35 B2 48 3¢ 3h B A AR 4
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information R A &R NI E -

to the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which ~ Bfi§3RER T3 AB T 2% BT i A AR R &l I EE

is also the functional currency of the Company. B o

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal ZARAF—EEREER AT - EFBHEB QTN
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 19. FEEBHINMFEION -

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull ZERA HEESATATHBLEEAREA
Investment Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is Chinatex Corporation, a state- &) MESZKF AR AFEPHER QAT —FKh
owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration of, FEEXKEEEEELEEEZESHEEER
and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and EBENUNLEXREAZEHADLE-

Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BB RBUKBEER ([HEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") B EER])
(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — first effective on 1 (a) BRMFNE]IEFT 2 EBMBHRE
January 2014 ]| -H2014F1 1R BREK
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial ARG EREIN y HECRHEERSR
Liabilities BRI BfE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for BEXE G EREIH 2 FemEERAKE SR
Non-Financial Assets EETAR Eokiide
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities BB R E AR REERE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 F105% BAHH
(2011) WERERIZE 1298
BAGE AR
F279 2 BFT A
(20114F)
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation BB EANE39R 2 TAETAZFEHEY S
of Hedge Accounting 1BET A REZEE
HK(IFRIC) 21 Levies 7 (BRHBHRE BE
ZEZEY)
— 215

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on the Group’s ML EE T ARG REBNPRHEHRRT BEBE XY

financial statements. Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014412 H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s

financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle?
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle!
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
(2011) Employee Contributions!
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations?®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Annual Report 2014

2. MERMBHREERN ([EBH
BHEEA]) ()

(b) BAEMRIE M ARERZ IR EIE
BAEMGHE R

T A B AR BB B R R A W2 ]

BEMBREERG M - MR ERITRE

REBRPRE -

BRHBHREER 2010 £20124F A HA
(BT &) 2 FE R

B R 22 20114 E20134 A1
(1BETR) 2 FE !
BBV R E %L 20129 £20144F A H
(@ﬂ$> 2 FE ks
EESTENSEIRZ FEHEE

BRI

BEEFENEISE R WERBHATERR A
RS ERE3SE KRB

ZIEFTR
BEETEANFINR Y TREEF S
EETA (20114F) B8 #H
BAEGTERNE7R Y BIYTBHRRN
EXIEN a5
BEEUKRELLENT e@MI A
(20144F)
B R 22 BEHEERE N A

F10E BB G BREARZENEE
BRIF28HZEFTA HERTE®

HREY G HmEER WRAEEBRENE
FIRZ BRI A At s
BB WS R 2P ARKRA
£515%%

U R2014F7A1R 2 REHE 2 FEMBAER

2 201457 A1ASK Z K Mm 2 FEHMAEXR  SEAR
ZHAHZBRERZZ5

3 20161 A1A K Z kBt 2 FE R AR

+ R2017F1A1A S 2 ke 2 FE AR AR

5 R2018F1A1ARZ kMM 2 FERREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M ERR M
31 December 2014 2014412H31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMNBEBUMBREERN ([FEY
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BHEE]) (&)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b)) EBMEHAKRER ZF5] /&I
yet effective (Continued) BB HRELER (&)
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-2013 Cycle and 2012- 2010 F2012F A - 2011 F Z2013F FH R
2014 Cycle 2012F 22014 F BH 2 FEK#E

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make 1RIBFENERFBEMH ZETHLZERIHTE
small, non-urgent changes to a number of standards where they are Wi 2 ZEBI{EH /BN IEE 288 -

currently unclear.

Amendment to HKAS 1 — Disclosure Initiative BEEEEAFISZIETE-EEHHE
The amendments clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality and aggregation, Z{EF] B BB A S LEBFIEEBEEANRS G
the presentation of subtotals, the structure of financial statements and the  FIE- /st 2 23 WHBR 2 EE R ST BREY

disclosure of accounting policies. W2 IES| .

Although the amendments do not require specific changes, they clarify a EEZEFIWEEIEHL A8 HHEYZE
WEBIEHEE WL AFREARIFA

number of presentation issues and highlight that preparers are permitted 2
to tailor the format and presentation of the financial statements to their EETEERREAEZTENTBRERIBALSE

circumstances and the needs of users. R o
The key areas addressed by the changes are as follows: EHMAENETESENAT:

e Materiality: an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information o EAFEE: BEAHIHDBEERNTAIE
in a manner that obscures useful information. An entity need not BEEREN BEEHARZETEENE

provide disclosures if the information is not material; s

e Disaggregation and subtotals: the amendments clarify what additional o 28 K /Nat (B R] BB AT ERE VRV BE SN 5T
subtotals are acceptable and how they should be presented; REZ5FH:

e Notes: an entity is not required to present the notes to the financial o  MifF: B EFILEEIEF 278 18R & M

statements in a particular order, and management should tailor the TOERERREERBAREAESZEZ
structure of their notes to their circumstances and the needs of their E M RESRE
users;

e Accounting policies: how to identify a significant accounting policy that o @3 B%F: A BHBIEHRE FE S5
should be disclosed; x

e Other comprehensive income from equity accounted investments: o K EIRHEZEFIRIRE 2 Hih 2 mE Uk

other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures should ERTIREELEZEMEEWZEIED BIE
be separated into the share of items that will subsequently be MERBETHETIERECEE REEH

reclassified to profit or loss and those that will not. TEEHHBEEEERZER -
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NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-based
depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for intangible assets. This
presumption can be rebutted if either the intangible asset is expressed as
a measure of revenue or revenue and the consumption of the economic

benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service to be recognised as a reduction in the service cost
in the period in which the service is rendered instead of allocating the

contributions to periods of service.

Amendments to HKAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method in accounting
for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its

separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and

equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %T%T%MENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to

better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised when
an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations

The amendments require an entity to apply relevant principles of HKFRS
3 Business Combinations and other standards when it acquires an interest
in a joint operation that constitutes a business as defined in that standard.
The principles of HKFRS 3 are also applied upon the formation of a joint
operation if an existing business as defined in that standard is contributed

by at least one of the parties in the joint operation.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS

11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue

recognition:

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

(c) New Companies Ordinance provisions relating to the
preparation of financial statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, in relation to
the preparation of financial statements will apply to the Company in its first
financial year beginning on or after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the financial year
ending 31 December 2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact on the Group'’s financial
position or performance, however the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
would have impacts on the presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The statement of financial position of the Company will
be presented in the notes rather than a separate statement and the related
notes need not be included, while generally the statutory disclosures will be

simplified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %T%T%MENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements, which for the financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, Cap. 32, in accordance with the transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622 “Accounts and Audit” which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of
Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements include

applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which

is also the functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration

classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with
the transition requirements in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business

combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014412 A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements

of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net
assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate

are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of
the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of

the asset transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in

the same way as other non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the

straight-line method.

An investment property is realisable upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the item is realisable.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and

the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful

lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 2% — 4.5% or period of
the lease term

10% - 33%

10% - 20%

20% — 30%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STAT%MENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the

manner intended by management).

(f) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.
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I Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

(i) Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 10% —20% or period of the contract term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an

indication that an asset may be impaired.

(j) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (i.e. derivative financial instruments) are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 201412H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables,

available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after

the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or breach
of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 201412H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments are
subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of
the investments can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss is not reversed.

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into derivative financial

instruments and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders, bank and other
borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, came into operation on
3 March 2014. Under the Ordinance shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Consideration received or receivable for the issue of shares
on or after 3 March 2014 is credited to share capital. Commissions and
expenses are allowed to be deducted from share capital under s.148 and
s.149 of the Ordinance.
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I Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 201412H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments not held primarily
for trading purposes are classified as non-current assets or liabilities when

the remaining maturity of the instruments is more than one year.

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS

18 “Revenue”.

(v) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v) Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the

useful lives of the related assets.

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

A provision for restructuring is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal plan
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring
will be carried out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing its

main features to those affected by it.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards

of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

(o) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.

(p) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years/periods and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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TN Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes

are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(q) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or

loss on disposal.

(r) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year

when the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the

employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group

recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credit to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

(t) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Company’s parent.
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Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(t) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %T%T%MENTS

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used
in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are difference from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on changes in

circumstances.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are different from

expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be

required.
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LA Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others (i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Singapore and Macau). All
of these geographical areas are operating segments except “Others” which

is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads, yarns and garments

and results by reportable segment for the year.
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2014 20144
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others total ~ Eliminations ~Consolidated
& HE = ] #E  HEEF EiM BN HEME AEAE baf &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET FET FET FET TET FET FET FET
Revenue BEE 1,494,114 1,321,674 857,416 1,094,666 686,119 420,585 150,703 865,856 6,891,133 - 6,891,133
External sales HINEE
Inter-segment sales (nofe) ~ HREHE
(fizt) 4,944,412 2,531,113 - - 386,361 112,848 - 176,289 8,151,023 (8,151,023) =
Total segment revenue DEEEBLE 6,438,526 3,852,787 857,416 1,094,666 1,072,480 533,433 150,703 1,042,145 15,042,156 (8,151,023) 6,891,133
Results E
Segment profit PEEFA 133,252 87,660 74,915 96,269 42,741 37,038 13,196 76,499 561,570
Interest income FIEMA 17,903
Unallocated income RAERA 2,917
Depreciation and TER#E
amortisation (210,024)
Other unallocated ERHEL T
expenses (217,510)
Finance costs B (34,983)
(Gain on disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries sk 4,694
Share of loss of an associate  FEfE — R &
NAZER (738)
Profit before taxation BRHAIRN 123,829



BEEE(%E) HRLT POrEEE] 07

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmR M
31 December 2014 20145412 A31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERSEER (&)
(Continued)
2013 2013F
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
Eif e A #E  HEHF e BN EtE  HEEE E3fii Fa
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FHET FET FET
Revenue £+
External sales HMEE 1,557,143 1,182,204 898,638 1,088,893 861,736 338,137 203,499 812,557 6,942,807 - 6942807
Inter-segment sales (ofe) ~ HERHE
(H#t) 4970384 3,049,991 - - 533,229 7389 - 125695 8753198 (8,753,199 -

Total segment revenue NREFRLE 6527527 4,232,195 898638 1088893 1394965 412,036 203,499 938252 15696,005  (8,753,198) 6,942,807

Results ES
Segment profit HEEF 136,667 9,377 87,643 106,873 53,832 2377 19,963 76,066 600,298
Interest income FIEBA 7411
Unallocated income RABBA 50,607
Depreciation and TEREH

amortisation (262,113)
Other unallocated A AAEX

eXpenses (273 ,386)
Finance costs BEMR (36,419)
Profit before taxation BHAIRF 86,398

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price with reference to the prevailing market rates. A3 DEREE 2 BIR ISR ERH 2 HIBERMEE -



IEEEN Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, loss on disposal/written-off
of property, plant and equipment, net (loss)/gain from derivative financial
instruments, finance costs, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, etc.. This is the
measure reported to the board of directors of the Company for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on segment
assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the board of

directors of the Company.

Other segment information
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Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: EREAGEDHEAN S8
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others  Consolidated
£ PE =) BE  HEET EM BN HA®E &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr FET FET FEn FET FET FET
2014 2014F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ % £ R Z 15 el
recognised ontradeand ~ FBZHERK
bills receivables, net (BR)/®RFE 39 (150) (3,131) 71 (410) 31 (1) 616 (2,935)
2013 2013F
Impairment loss (reversed)/ % £ R Z 15l
recognised on trade and A EEL
bills receivables, net (BR)/®AFE (2,089) 3412 (3,847) (232) (109) (26) 1 645 (2,245)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI_Ak ESTATEMENTS

R SRR M e
31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BEXFRIEESN (&)
(Continued)
Revenue from the Group’s products AEBEMZEERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers AT ARERS D AEBRGIINBERFLETE L
by products: DT
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F %7t HK$000 F% T
Production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads NEREECH BAGRY
and yarns 5,918,787 5,976,440
Production and sales of garments BERHERK 972,346 966,367

6,891,133 6,942,807
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME
31 December 2014 2014412 H31H
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ¥XBERIEEN (H)
(Continued)
Geographical information b 185 & K}
The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-  RREER - AEE 2 IEREEE (Hi) iR
current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period: NEBZ2WOT:
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12A31H M2013F12A31H
HK$'000 F %7t HK$000 F& T
The PRC i 1,501,882 1,570,681
Hong Kong BE 46,745 51,097
America =M 134 188
Sri Lanka HEHER 173,598 173,791
Others H it iR 784 621
1,723,143 1,796,378

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and investment in life insurance /i : ERBEETREEEHREEER ASRBIRE Y

policies. BE o

Information about major customers EHETERFZ2ER

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total #{ZE2014F12A31H It FE M #H £2013F12A4
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 31RIEFEEHE HEKAEREF 2 & ¥ 5L

December 2013. REE LS EBERERIOR
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. RMERK
2014 2013
20145 20134
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 T/
Finance costs on: BEMAR:
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable BRSFNZHEELZ

within five years BIIREMES 34,983 36,419
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk ESTATEMENTS

mEMBEmRME
31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
8. INCOME TAX 8. FiEHt
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 %7 HK$'000 F% T
Current tax: REERE:
Hong Kong B 278 2,721
The PRC H 12,111 13,612
Other jurisdictions HipalE it E 4,758 1,876
17,147 18,209
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BAFEREBEIR/ (BERE)
Hong Kong B (20) 612
The PRC H (330) (758)
Other jurisdictions H iRl AM & 1,230 (264)
880 (410)
Overprovision for the total tax undercharged BEFEIUBBLERERE
in previous years - (8,040)
18,027 9,759
Deferred tax (note 20): BB (H520)
Hong Kong N (133) 206
The PRC F 5,795 (24,372)
Other jurisdictions Hih Rk E 4,379 117
10,041 (24,049)

28,068 (14,290)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December 2013: 16.5%)

of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption from
the Sri Lanka income tax until April 2014. Since then, the tax rate of Sri

Lanka income tax is 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD”) initiated a tax audit on the Company and its subsidiaries for the
years of assessment from 2001/02 onwards. In March 2008, 2009 and
2010, February 2011, January 2012 and February 2012, notices of
estimate additional assessment (the “Protective Assessments”) for the
years of assessment 2001/02, 2002/03, 2003/04, 2004/05, 2005/06 and
2005/06 in an aggregate amount of HK$14,352,000, HK$19,844,000,
HK$18,390,000, HK$62,834,000, HK$35,019,000 and HK$12,343,000,
respectively, were issued to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the

Company by the IRD.

Annual Report 2014

8. FiiE® (&)
EENEHINEREREFEZHTEZRHAEFMN
16.5% (20134F12H31H : 16.5% ) Z TR R+ & -

RIBPECEMSTE ([REREHE]) REE
FRSTUE BRG] PEME AT ZHER25% °

REFBERABEREIER - AR E K
BRARMEL 2BV ERRTER RSN
BE014FAARIE R HEBRZAEHRN
E12% ©

HAEA R AR AR G AR E R
THEHE

R2008F2H BEAEMBK R ([HBEBIBLARQ
AR EHIB AR HR2001/02Kk ik 2 RFRHEE
BT —BHBEE - R200843H - 200943 A
K20104F3A 201142 - 201241 A LA %2012
28 # 7% B 5t2001/02 - 2002/03 * 2003/04 ~
2004/05 ~ 2005/06 }.2005/06 % 8 1 & & 7 Bl
3% H & #£14,352,0007% 7t ~ 19,844,000 7T »
18,390,0003% 7T * 62,834,000/% 7T * 35,019,000
77T ] 12,343,000/ TT & 58 2 il st MR R B AN
(MREHFHD FARARIRAARE THEA
ale
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%T%MENTS

8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment
2003/04, out of the aggregate amount of HK$18,390,000, two Protective
Assessments of HK$4,375,000 issued to the Company and a Hong Kong
subsidiary, respectively, were in effect alternative assessments to that of an
overseas subsidiary. Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year of
assessment 2004/05, out of the aggregate amount of HK$62,834,000, two
Protective Assessments of HK$2,266,000 and HK$23,194,000 issued to
the Company and a Hong Kong subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect
alternative assessments to that of the above overseas subsidiary. Regarding
the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment 2005/06, out of
the aggregate amount of HK$47,362,000, two Protective Assessments of
HK$1,687,000 and HK$15,985,000 issued to the Company and a Hong
Kong subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect alternative assessments to

that of the above overseas subsidiary.

Objections against the Protective Assessments were lodged. For the
years of assessment 2001/02 and 2002/03, full amounts were held over
unconditionally. For the years of assessment 2003/04, 2004/05 and
2005/06, amounts were held over on the condition that Tax Reserve
Certificates in the amount of HK$1,600,000, HK$23,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 were purchased in May 2010, April 2011 and March 2012,

respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has submitted a
settlement proposal, on a complete without prejudice basis, to the IRD in
order to finalise the tax audit and the tax provision of the Group for the years
of assessment 2001/02 to 2011/12. After negotiations, the Group has finally
come up with an agreement with the IRD that the total tax undercharged
for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2011/12 is approximately
HK$33,000,000, and the related interest payable and compound penalty
is approximately HK$9,300,000 in aggregate (collectively referred as “Total
Tax Payment”), while the Group has purchased Tax Reserve Certificates
totaling HK$34,600,000 for the aforesaid years of assessment. The Group
has then redeemed the Tax Reserve Certificates to offset part of the Total
Tax Payment and settle the remaining portion by cash. Since a tax provision
of HK$41,000,000 has been made for the year ended 31 August 2011, the
Group has concluded the Total Tax Payment and credited the tax being over-

provided during the year ended 31 December 2013.

*MEE

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
8. FiS¥ (&)
BE2003/04:R% & & 2 (RIE 1578 & £18,390,000
BB EPMRRELEIBSES
4,375,000 7T 5 B8 T AR R R —REEHE R
AEAE T —HEINETE R RMNREETRZ R
2R RER © $h2004/05:8 51 4F B 2 AR FEIERT
Bi & 62,834,000/ 7T 2 & 58 - B R ok (R FE M
TR 4 582,266,000 7T % 23,194,000 7T 5 Bl 3
FARRABR—BEEMNBABINE AT LG
SNHE B A B AR BE BT 2 3B A il 5HET R
BE2005/06:8 % & & 2 (R 1578 & 547,362,000
BITZ @ B MRIRME T € %1,687,000
7T 215,985,000 T A Bl T ARF R —HE
BRI B R RNE AT UGN E D R IRE
MERTR 2 2B A M T AT B o

wh 3 7

BHULEREEFHERE D RE - 2001/02%
2002/03RMFEZ 2 HEOEEGKEER M
2003/04 ~ 2004/05 }2005/06 & R EE 2 £ %L
2 BIR20104E5 8 - 201144 8 201243 A B B
1,600,0005% 7T * 23,000,000 7T K 10,000,000/
TEZ TSR AR -

B E2013F12A31B I FE M AEEE A
BREZ2EEEEMNNOMBREREE NESST
P 75 5 E2001/02F 201 1/ 12 B F E B B E
R BEEE SEEE AEERKARKRE
B 1 3% + [ 22001/0222011/12:% 11 4F /£ HA R A9
DU i 75 48 58 49 /533,000,00058 Tt 0 K fE 1< 18 B
8 Rk ZEA £4959,300,000/ 7T (4 A
Mefisl) MASEEH FMRBHFEBES
#£34,600,0008 7T 2 FEFiF - FEt - AEE B FER
RS RS M BB WIAR SBT3
%o AR EZE20114F8A31 H IEFE B MEH B #
141,000,000/ 7T - A< & B 70 &L £20134 12 H31
BIEFEHMaEER ARG AT IBREERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVBHRME

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 20.

Annual Report 2014

8. FE® (&)
A REEBUE 2 S BN M 520 ©

The tax charge/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the profit RFERGABIREMEZENKFAROBESI L
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other /(5T A) BT AT BN A LR T -
comprehensive income as follows:
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/%7T
Profit before taxation Bx i Bl 22 FI 123,829 86,398
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or losses REBAENBRERRNERZ
in the jurisdiction concerned BRI ENTHIE 22,908 (15,491)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ERTENROHEYE 6,796 6,058
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose WABERR OB E (5,239) (5,375)
Under/(Over)provision in prior years BEFERBIR/ (BERE) 880 (8,450)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MEBEEARBANTEYE 19,575 29,762
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised EEEREARERNHETE 1,006 9,138
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised EBRBERRERNHEEER (4,106) (23,617)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously not recognised & /B B 1F R A M) L T 718 (12,199) (5,815)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax on PRC and AN BAREMBELN
overseas subsidiaries EET IR (1,559) (502)
Others it 6 2
Tax charge/(credit) for the year REEHEZH/ (GHA) 28,068 (14,290)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%T%MENTS

A T it =
31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. =EFEEA
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F %7 HK$000 %
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: EFERFNEMRTIEE:
Auditors' remuneration A i d 3,044 3,678
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRABBRZEERA 6,176,316 6,188,170
Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) RENEZTE (Hii14) 2,198 246
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 15) )% - #22 LRE 2T E (H:#15) 202,084 259,258
Employee benefits expense EERMZL
(including directors’ emoluments set out in note 10) (REHRMFI0OZEZHE) 953,404 953,548
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE/HEnE BERIER
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments * BRAEREEE 2,187 12,483
Net exchange losses * fE B3 E 3,212 14,172
Net loss from derivative financial instruments # TEERMTIAZBEFE" 23,737 -
Release of prepaid lease payments BANHEHREED 2,609 2,609
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 17) HiEmVEEZEH (Wi#17) 3,133 -
and after crediting: REFATIISE:
Amortisation of deferred income* EIEW A B gE 1,458 1,458
Interest income* FIEMA 17,903 7411
Net rental income from investment properties* RENENRSWAFE" 7,762 2,370
Net gain from derivative financial instruments # TEEMTI Az WaFE" = 47,907
Impairment loss reversed on trade and bills receivables, net * 4 % [ Z 4 JE Wt 708 2 Joi (B 1B ok B (Bl FE* 2,935 2,245
Compensation income for factory demolishment * il - O N 8,930 -
Government grants (nofe) * BIFHEEE (H5E) * 7,349 766
* Included in other income * BEEEMBKAR
# Included in other gains and losses # BIETEE M S M EE R

Note: Government grants for the year ended 31 December 2014 mainly represent grants of P &E -

HK$5,696,000 received from the PRC local government authority as subsidies to the

Group for acquiring certain property, plant and equipments for energy saving scheme

and environmental protection scheme implemented by the PRC local government.

There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

B ZE2014F 128318 L FE 2 BT AL = Z 45U
2R 8 A B E b IR T AR AR 695,696,000 TTIE A A

SERTEEMBNERL

8 RIRRE Bl

BEETWE BERRE M-

% TR i B 3 A AR FR PR 1
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (31 December 2013:

Annual Report 2014

10.EEREEMESER

(a) EEME

RFEC e EREOM (201312 H31H 1 9f7)

nine) directors during the year were as follows:

PE-NEZENMEMT:

2014 20144
HA Kam CHOW
On, YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Wing Kin, YANG ZHANG
LI Lan Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Total
£ ] Bz BEH FiEE i) 4 HER AxE BtE RE #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET Tz TET FET FET Tz FET FET Tz TE7x
(note i) (note ii)
(Hiti) (frzt i)
Fees ne - 188 200 200 - 250 200 200 - 1,238
Other emoluments Hinfe
Salaries and other benefits HeREMBER 2,846 5,658 - - 924 - - - - 9,428
Equity-settled share-based payments =& E M1 A
B3 PANE - 779 264 - - - - - - 1,043
Retirement benefits scheme AR ERT
contribution = 57 = = 9 = - - - 66
2,846 6,682 464 200 933 250 200 200 - 11,775
Note: HieE -

(i) Madam Li Lan has retired as Executive Director on 23 January 2015.

(i)~ Mr. YANG Shibin resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2015.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.

() ZFTHRLR2015F1A23BRENTES-

(i)  HEBLEER2015F1IAIRBEBLIERNITES -

RRFE AERBELENEFEEINME  PAE
VIR SETE I SE T 0k d 0 13 2

B -REEHEEERETMAME-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%T%MENTS

A RS
31 December 2014 2014412H31H
10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. EEREEMEEHR (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEME (&)
2013 2013
CHOW
HA Kam YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Wing Kin, YANG ZHANG
LI'Lan On, Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Total
Y ER% BEH EiEA g BB k(2 it RE faE

HKSO00 — HKSDOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOO — HKSUOO — HKSDOO — HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HK$OOO  HKSDOO
TET TET TET TET FET TET TET FET FET TET

(note)
(Hit)
Fess ne - - 117 200 - 250 20 200 - %7
Other emoluments Hinfie
Salaries and other benefits HoREMERN 2,542 3817 1,585 - - - - - - 7914
Equity-settled share-based payments ~ big i 58 b 13 B
ARz - 1,157 429 - - - - - - 1,586
Retirement benefits scheme R B
contribution - 286 93 - - - - - - 379
2502 5,260 2,194 200 . 250 200 200 S 108%
Note: Kiat -

Dr. YEN Gordon was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 31 B E#1E L HR2013F5A31IH BRI EE AT AENTE
May 2013. =

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as R FE  NEBWEBTAES IS LAE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss /A0 B3 7K 5= & gk > A0 A 72 £ [ R 1) 22 8 = B Bk 4
of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year. B-BRFEMEBEEEHNEETMME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

10. EEREEMEEH (F)

(b) REBS

The five highest paid employees included two (31 December 2013: one) &= Bi& #9654 (& 8 B2 &2 (20134F12A311H :
directors, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of 17 ) &% - HB & 55N LiltfisE(a) - 88 31z

the remaining three (31 December 2013: four) employees are as follows: (20134 12A318 4f)EEWE ST ¢

2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 & HK$'000 F %1
Salaries and other benefits e REMET 21,851 17,853
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINEFIFHEIMER 211 224
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREEARDAER TR 824 1,366
22,886 19,443

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2T F A TR
2014 2013
2014% 2013F
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000/ 7T 22,500,000/ 1T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,0017% 7T £4,500,0007% 71T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7T 25,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$10,000,000 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,000/ 7t £10,500,000/% 7T - 1
HK$15,000,000 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,0007% 70 215,500,000 7T 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk ESTATEMENTS

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were

within the following bands:

e M BHwRME

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

10. EEREEMEER (&)

(c) mMEERBME
ENfENEREREREZMEN FUTA

Al

2014 2013
2014 20134
Nil z - 1
Below HK$1,000,000 411,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,0007% 7T 53,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$5,000,000 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,000 1. £5,500,000% 1. - 1
HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,500,000 6,000,0007% 77 7,500,000/ 7T 1 -
11. DIVIDENDS 11. R E
2014 2013
2014 20134
HK$'000 F#& 7 HK$000 F/27T
Dividends paid during the year: REECMRE:
2013 final dividend of HK2 cents 2013F R E R B BB
(2012 final dividend: Nil) per share (012 KBRS Z) 24,061 -

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both periods.

The final dividend of HK 4 cents in respect of the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: HK2 cents) per share, amounting to approximately
HK48,122,000 (2013: HK$24,061,000) in total, has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in

the forthcoming annual general meeting.

TR 18 E A 3 48 2 A SRR P HAR R

AAREERBENEE2014F12A31ALFE
2 ARERRE B R4Sl (20134 278 4L) - & H L
48,122,0007 7T (20134 : 24,061,000 7T ) * I
BRERRNEERRAFAE EHE-
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FEM KRR
31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. B8R EF
The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share AT E AREEEREREN R#ERN IR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data: BT E:
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F#7T HK$000 Fi# T
Earnings 27
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company ~ Btet E &R EREF| R EE & T
for the purposes of basic earnings and diluted MAZARAIEBAREREERT
earnings per share 90,590 91,304
2014 2013
2014% 2013F
Number of shares BAEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of A EERERRI R EERF
basic earnings and diluted earnings per share TRz ERAREA 1,203,046,960 1,203,046,960

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 HARIEFE ST EREI3 [FIREN ] #E
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 does not assume the exercise of AR F M RITHEERAE 2 EHBRITEESRKRD
the Company’s outstanding share options because the adjusted exercise RRFE 2 FHTE  EHitstEE E2014%128
prices of those options calculated in accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings 318 € K2013F12A318 ItFEHM 2R
Per Share” are higher than the average market price of the shares for the EFER TS W EBRZSHEREDETFE -

year.
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13. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of HK$203,812,000
(2013: profit HK$10,007,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

covae e NN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAk ESTATEMENTS

e M BHwRME

31 December 2014 2014412H31H
13. RREM (BE) &R

f% B8 FE 15 1548 61 $5203,812,0005 7T (20134 : &
#]10,007,0007% L) * B R AR & B 75 3R & A 5
/Eﬁ °

14. REY

HK$'000 & 7T

COST
At 1 January 2013
Currency realignment

Reclassification from buildings

At 31 December 2013
Currency realignment

Reclassification from buildings

At 31 December 2014

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2013
Currency realignment

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2013
Currency realignment

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2014

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

N
7201351 H1H
HNEIEERR
1 5 38 B

M2013%F12H31H
SN E R
A8 5 J

R2014%12H31H

e
20131 A1H
SN E R
EFERE

2013512 A31H

HNEIME R

EFERE

MR2014%12H31H

SREE
2014512 A31H

2013512 A31H

2,607
324
31,175

34,106
(354)
23,834

57,586

59

246

306
(12)
2,198

2,492

55,094

33,800
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2014
was HK$159,488,000 (31 December 2013: HK$117,580,000). The fair
value has been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Ascent
Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent property valuer. The
valuation was determined by income approach, direct comparison method

and Depreciated Replacement Cost approach.

Income approach is a technique in which the estimated stream of future
benefits may be enjoyed by reason of ownership, usually the anticipated or
projected earnings, is processed to indicate the amount measured through
capitalisation of net income or application of multiples derived from financial

analysis of similar type of properties.

Direct comparison method is adopted where comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of market values.

“Depreciated Replacement Cost” approach requires an estimate of the
new replacement costs of the buildings and structures of the property from
which deductions are then made to allow for age, conditions, functional

obsolescence, etc.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment
properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of
completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market price.
The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the

market price will result in the fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’

highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.
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14. RE&W* (&)

NEFEIBEYMEN2014F12A318 A FE
{8 £159,488,000/% jt (20134 12A31 8 :

117,580,000/ 7T ) - A FEETI BB LY
HEMYAFEZAER A BETNHAETES

e BRAMBEDIZABAL BERLEERTER
BERANEETE

REBRNERDTR aHEREERMZEZ
fAEt RIS R E CBE BB IR AT #1T
BEIE - DAME B R BB B H A B R E AR

UDERPBOMA G BB ERSZER -
BERUEBENRBEEROER R B ER 2 &
REBETLRERA - RERRATFZHAELE

SYHEE BEMHAE Z AT HE R ERET
DT WAFAEERYERZ [ERIE R S RE -

(EEERAN] EZFZ2EFVEETREBY 2
MEENA  WRNE PSR AR RDEERSE
1 HHIR -

ETHERSSEREMEZERE L 8L
B R -k S8 - BE ZRFOHEREMR
= USHEBEMTISER T 2R ABEAEMD
BERK - TISERKEL/ THEEBREY
X2 RNFEELI Tk

BREMEZ A FEERFEIRET LA FEE
E-RATBEFENUAAELDE 2GR EKER
BRKE REYMEZERAETEER -
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31 December 2014 2014%12H31H
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REYZE (&)
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis 3% & ¥ % LA B4 AR & 4 Hi5504F (AES
over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years. RERBE)FE-

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for ~ ZNEEFF AR E WX Ty F/ER I & 5 & 1%

capital appreciation. (=R
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12A31H M2013F12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F% 7T
The carrying value of investment properties shown WEFMREENE c KRERSE:
above comprises:
Investment properties situated in Hong Kong held UREBNFRRERG 2 RENE
under medium-term leases 2,330 2,439
Investment properties situated in the PRC held RRBE R ERESE
under medium-term land use rights BEME 52,764 31,361

55,094 33,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE
31 December 2014 20144 12H31H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. P2 - B R B
The Group K&
Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KABER & EBR
HENLH BT R HBERESR EH RRIR BE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FiET FiET FET FET FET FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2013 ®2013F1A1H 21,549 967,069 816,723 2,143,259 28,282 39,775 4,016,657
Currency realignment NEREZS 1 1,994 206 232 (142) 513 2804
Additions Zm - 2473 3824 70,311 749 24,586 101,943
Reclassifications to: ARz
— investment properties -RENE - (36,515) - - - - (36,515)
- others —H - 29,945 1,295 - - (31,240) -
Disposals/written-off HE /i - - (20,039) (35,544) (3,390) - (58,973)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12A31H 21,550 964,966 802,009 2,178,258 25,499 33,634 4,025,916
Currency realignment NEBEER - (439) (440) (146) (49) (103) 1,177)
Additions 10 - 767 7,259 88,408 652 31,668 128,754
Reclassifications to: ARE:
— investment properties -VIES - (23,834) - - - - (23,834)
- others —Hfth - 33,310 7,649 2,107 - (43,066) -
Disposalsiwritten-off HE/HEH - (4,466) (24,321) (47,840) (1,609) - (78,236)

At 31 December 2014 M2014612A31R 21,550 970,304 792,156 2,220,787 24,493 22,133 4,051,423
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% - s R ke (&)

The Group (Continued) REE (48)
Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KARER B #ER
HENLTE BF ®tE  HERER EH EEIR e

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Depreciation and impairment REREE
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1H 11,801 252,103 559,406 1,346,868 19,469 - 2,189,647
Currency realignment NEBEER - 354 (241) (166) (166) - (219)
Provided for the year REEER 214 41,728 46,858 167,974 2,484 - 259,258
Eliminated on reclassification AREREMERMH

to investment properties - (5,340) - - - - (5,340)
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /TR - - (19,583) (19,013) (3,344) - (41,940)
At 31 December 2013 H2013%12A31 B 12015 288,845 586440 1495663 18,443 - 2401406
Currency realignment NEREZE - (108) (292) (81) (42) - (523)
Provided for the year =EERE 215 41,162 39,513 118,713 2,481 - 202,084
Eliminated on reclassification to AREREMERME

investment properties - - - - - - -
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /iR - 2,127) (20,498) (47,667) (1,426) - (71,718)
At 31 December 2014 H2014F12A31 F 12,230 327,772 605163 1566628 19,456 - 253149
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2014 12014124318 9,320 642,532 186,993 654,159 5,037 22,133 1,520,174

At 31 December 2013 #2013512A31H 9,535 676,121 215,569 682,595 7,056 33,634 1,624,510
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15. Y15 - s R sk fe ()
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The Company NN
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B EERRE ) BE
HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T HK$000 T/
Cost RA&
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1AH 38,154 4,812 42 966
Additions #0 493 516 1,009
Disposals/written-off HE/E (1,737) (920) (2,657)
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H 36,910 4,408 41,318
Additions # 392 463 855
Disposals/written-off HE /T (5,848) (204) (6,052)
At 31 December 2014 #2014F12A31H 31,454 4,667 36,121
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1H 32,854 2,667 35,521
Provided for the year e FERE 1,222 668 1,890
Eliminated on disposals/written-off e /R (1,737) (920) (2,657)
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H 32,339 2415 34,754
Provided for the year =EEERE 1,144 780 1,924
Eliminated on disposals/written-off e /R (5,848) (204) (6,052)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 27,635 2,991 30,626
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12A31H 3,819 1,676 5,495
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 4571 1,993 6,564

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,

after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line

basis.

Fimg wERREZRARTARS 2 H5
I8 1R LA B GROA 7 8 -
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31 December 2014 20145412 A31H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% - s e tE (&)

The Group AN S
The carrying values of properties shown above comprises: A EFTRYIEBREESE:
Freehold and leasehold land and buildings Construction in progress
AKABEREENLHURETF HEIR

At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
R2014% #H20135F 20144 R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H

HK$'000 F& 7 HK$000 78T HK$'000 FE7 HK$000 F/87T

Leasehold land in Hong Kong under REBURBREREN

medium-term leases HEL 6,986 7,200 = -
Freehold land outside Hong Kong REBUAINGKAF B L 2,334 2,334 = -
Buildings erected on land in Hong Kong ~ RBEBNFHREEHER

held under medium-term leases T FRETF 3,115 3,247 = -
Buildings erected on land in the PRC iNGEEP G R i e sy

held under medium-term land use rights i F&IEF 570,068 601,744 22,133 33,319

Buildings erected on freehold and land REBUINKATE R
held under medium-term leases outside REEEREN LN
Hong Kong (note) BF (i) 69,349 71,131 = 315

651,852 685,656 22,133 33,634

Note: The directors of the Company consider that the allocation of buildings erected on the — #f32: ANAREER A HkAFAELEEN L 2 EF
freehold and leasehold land cannot be reliably separated for disclosure. DB EER] S D B R -
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Annual Report 2014
16. E{HERIE
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
M2014F12A31H R2013F12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEEMBENEERERE:
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong under MRBEBRINAR R E S+ E
medium-term leases or medium-term land use rights T RESENEEL Y 107,373 110,394
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERMEMAT
Current assets MEBEE 2,610 2,610
Non-current assets InHEE 104,763 107,784
107,373 110,394
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31 December 2014 20145412 A31H
17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B\ EE
The Group REE
Software
B
HK$'000 F& T
cosT R
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H -
Reclassification from deposits paid for previous years — #iB1E FE X EIIE & 5 18,371
Additions #n 11,913
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F12A31H 30,284
Additions = 495
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 30,779
AMORTISATION 6
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H -
Provided for the year TEERE -
At 31 December 2013 20134 12A31H -
Provided for the year RFEERE 3,133
At 31 December 2014 2014 12H31H 3,133
CARRYING VALUES IREE

At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 27,646

At 31 December 2013 2013512 H31H 30,284
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

Annual Report 2014

18. R—EHEL T 2 EH

The Group KE

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

R2014%12831H M2013%12A31H
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/&
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD  ARAT) 16,204 -
Share of post-acquisition oss LK ERERE (738) -
15,466 -

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2014 is as follows: A& Z N FHR20145E 128310 2B 0T

Percentage of

ownership
Form of business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
iR E
i RERS
=1 EBREBRERX = AL S PR AE b BEREMRIEXRE BRABFDL
REMBEKEERA A Corporation The PRC Construction and managing of 30%
sewage treatment plant in
the PRC
bzNE] i T rp B RR B B IR )5 7K BRI TR

The primary business of 5 52X E K7 AR 2 7] is engaged in construction
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan City of Guangdong

Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the

consolidated financial statements.

REMBEKBEERARNEIEERIREREAR
TR B IR )5 KB R o

LB E R R T AE AR R A M BRI -
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18. R—BMERR z2Es (&)

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually

material:

BERFBEE 22 NRZMBE R :

At 31 December 2014
R2014%12831H
HK$'000 T 7

At 31 December 2013
R2013F12H31H
HK$'000 F% T

Loss from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

TREERBCER
Htt 2@

PENERE

738

738

19. BAGF A R &

At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

M2014F12A31H R2013F12A31H

HK$'000 F& T HK$000 F/% T

Unlisted shares, at cost LTI AT 26,601 28,156
Deemed contribution (note) WREEE (Wi2) 4,248 4612
30,849 32,768

Amounts due from subsidiaries NG R 3,155,402 3,717,334
Less: Impairment loss recognised B CRERRERE (154,057) (546,023)
3,001,345 3,171,311

Amounts due to subsidiaries RYTBARFE 942,023 1,000,810
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Movements in the impairment loss recognised are as follows:

Annual Report 2014

19. BIEMIB AR EZ (18)
DRZRERL BT

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

M2014F12A31H R2013F12A31H

HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T

Balance at beginning of the year FNEH 546,023 546,023
Impairment loss reversed BEERERX (391,966) -
Balance at end of the year FIREE R 154,057 546,023

Note: Deemed contribution arises from the equity-settled share-based payments incurred by
the Company but attributable to its subsidiaries’ employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the amounts due from subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. For the year ended
31 December 2013, except for an aggregate amount of HK$402,608,000
which bears interest rate with reference to the average effective interest
rate of the bank borrowings of the Group plus a spread, the balances are

interest-free.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts (net of impairment
loss recognised) of HK$3,001,345,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$3,171,311,000) were not impaired as a result of the satisfactory
assessment of the current financial position and business prospects of those
subsidiaries by the management of the Group. An impairment loss has
been recognised if after the same assessment, the amount was considered
not recoverable. At the end of the reporting period, the impairment loss
recognised is related to individually impaired amounts and the relevant
subsidiaries are considered not in a good financial position to repay their
debts after assessing their net assets value, liquidity position and business

prospects.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Hiat: RRABMEEMHBREWBRRES 2 IAEEL
HOABRMD RERZ NRBRRALE -

2201412 A31 8 L4 - M B2 8P R FIE
REER R B REERER - HE2013612A
1B IEFE B4 402,608,000/ 02 &84
EAEERITEENTHERMNEM ESETR
Sh H ARSI R B B o

RBEEHE ARETEEEREREYZE
MEBARZRE MBI REBA RAET
ZRHE Rt BB FA (BRIKEERZRE
#2%) 3,001,345,000/% 7T (20134124318 :
3,171,311,0007& 7T ) b & 6k (& = fird 5 AE 1T HH [ &Y
AR A BRI AR E - Bl R R E
BR - RIE K FRERRERKTIRE &5
BERBEREHHEEFE RBESMRRLE
TR SRR BB B B 1 T E R4 H)  154K
AT ZHE AR

RMBE AR 2 FIAREER  RENEERER
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31 December 2014 2014412 H31H
19. FE{L KT 1 A& (4R)
MR2014F R2013F 12 A1 AR AR E 2B A
AlFFBIT

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Place/country
of incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of
issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
TEMAREL/ BRTR
BRREE BRH  ARIMRERORES
MEARER Fifest/BIR BRAR/BBRA ERRENLE TEXK
Directly Indirectly
H#E CiE:3
% %
Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co., Ltd. (nofe a) The PRC United States Dollars - 55.5  Production and sales of
REBREXERRF (Hita) h (“USD") 3,500,000 garments
3,500,000 1 SUE R HE K
REREREBRDA (otea) (Hiza) The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
3 14,000,000 ¢ garments
SUE R E K
Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC HK$3,600,000 - 100 Manufacturing of sewing
RECERBMERRT (Hita) h 3,600,000/ 7T threads
BLELR )8
REBEREBRDA (otea) (Hizta) The PRC HK$15,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
i 15,000,0007% 7T garments
SUE R E K
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Knitting, dyeing, printing
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) F 307,500,000 7T and sales of dyed fabrics
REDHEBHENEERDA (Hi#p) HE e HIEA
HEBM
Folktune Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEERRA 0 28T REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and
RAEXERALA B 3,000,000/ 7T yamns
enkesEs
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada Canadian Dollars (“CAD") 51 - Trading of fabrics and
MmEX 300,100 (Common shares) garments
300,100/07C ( & iEA%) MRKKE S
Goldlink Thread Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 - Trading of sewing threads
SELBBERDA 0 5,000,000 7T BORES
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/country
of incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of

issued share capital/registered

Annual Report 2014

19. BB AR R (F&)

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMmEL BRTR
BRREX BEH KRAMBCBRTRE/
WEARERE Fifest,/BIR BRA/BERA BRREANLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# B
% %
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
R YNS Bk 3,000,000/ 7T R E 5
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BESHEERAR B 28T KKE S
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (nofe a) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
IRBESBERALR (fHa) F 110,000,000% 7t dyed fabrics and yarns
- REAEERH R
ey
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holdings
BROERERAA B 28T BAEER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD26,000,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
BRAMERERAR (Hita) F 26,000,000% 7T garments
HERHEKK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (“LKR") - 60  Knitting, dyeing, printing
Republic of 985,000,000 and sales of dyed fabrics
Sri Lanka 985,000,000 2# &L & RE IR
HERRRENE (TEL]) HEER
THANE
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEGEEBRERAT ) 28T KKE S
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BFRYBBERDA 5 28T BAEER
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
BE(RMBEEERSE)ERAR ol 100,000 and chemicals
RYRECHES
LERESRESFERDT (otea) (Hita) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR #5,000,0007C ehES
FINENHBRERRF (notea) (Hiita) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR #35,000,0007T ehES
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19. BIGMIB AR Rz ()
Place/country
of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of
registration and share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BRTK
BRREX BEMH ERAMBCBRTRE/
WEARERE Fifest,/BIR BAE/ BRRA BERAMLE TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# M
% %
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
FEEMERERLA (f#a) H 800,000% 7T garments
HERHEKK
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 55.5  Trading of garments
HBEBR AR B 1,000,000/ 7t KEKE S
B EESBERDE (otea) (Hita) The PRC USD60,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
H 60,500,000 T dyed fabrics and yarns
- REMEERH R
ey
Notes: et -
a.  Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC a.  RPBENUIIEEECEXTIHAF -
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC b. RPABINEGELENEIERAKIMAT -

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the M EARRBNKIEARIERARESTRAE
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of ¥AREFZFEEEEESEFENBRAEER
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and $REHRNEENBEETEIHMH MK AQ 7
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of EERAHFIIEMHTEATNEISS I/ HEES
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, WK -AHERRFEDHSHECHTEMHE A
result in particulars of excessive length. Details of the subsidiaries, which & Z 15 &AM 5540 ©

were disposed of or deregistered during the year, are set out in note 40.

None of the subsidiaries had any debentures outstanding at the end of the REFERERHERLEEZEMER  HEBRQ T
year or at any time during the vyear. AR (ERE T A R o
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20. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and the

Company and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting

periods are as follows:

20. EIEF 18

Annual Report 2014

AR ER B ] AR B R AR o B T Ko B 1 ¥R B B
ROTERTEHIREE (BE) REEHUT :

The Group INE
Accelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
RABKERE BEFE Hity “E
HK$000 F& T HK$000 Fi&ET HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T
(note)
(Hi32)
At 1 January 2013 R2013%181H 663 (703) (26,097) (26,137)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REXEATR/ (TA) 4,998 (4,683) (24,364) (24,049)
Reversal of deferred tax arising B B| 8 2 BT R
on deferred income - - 18,228 18,228
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12A31H 5,661 (5,386) (32,233) (31,958)
Charged to profit or loss REZEANR 6,412 290 3,339 10,041
At 31 December 2014 H2014F12 4318 12,073 (5,096) (28,894) (21,917)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on

inventories, unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries

and deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on an overseas
subsidiary at the amounts of HK$2,446,000 (31 December 2013: HK$3,500,000),
HK$2,621,000 (31 December 2013: HK$2,981,000) and HK$319,000 (31 December

2013: HK$1,878,000) respectively.

Wit ARFEIERTFENRERANELHELERIA
BERMBAR CHMKERZEHENRERE
@ AR — BN B A BN TR T E A HR
EHIEE & 9 5l /2,446,000 7T (2013412 A31
H : 3,500,000/ 7T ) +2,621,000/% 7T (2013412 431
H :2,981,000/% jt ) 5319,000/% 7T (2013412 431
H:1,878,000/7T) °
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20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$765 million (31 December 2013: HK$718 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$31 million (31 December 2013: HK$33 million)
of such losses, which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries as it is considered by the management that future
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$734 million (31 December 2013: HK$685 million) tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31 December 2014, of the
above tax losses, an aggregate amount of approximately HK$493 million
(31 December 2013: HK$467 million) can be carried forward for five years
following the year when the losses were incurred. Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2014, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$21 million (31 December 2013:
HK$56 million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and
holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced
rate of 5% will be applied. No deferred tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such loss amounting to HK$43,833,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$41,860,000). Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$154,581,000
(31 December 2013: HK$117,351,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

=M

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
20. RN E (&)
2014412 A31 8 - 7<% M 7] FA E K 8% K R & 7
B 7 S8 FA 1 T8 5 18 40 4765,000,0007% 7T (20134
12A31H : 718,000,000/ Jt.) ° if it T8 /&5 18 R 49
31,000,000 7T (2013412 A31A : 33,000,000
BTIERRA—BEEHEBEEE WIHAQF
ETHBLARMELANBEBE CEREZE
REBRFOERTBF G E B IEEE - 84
T HIFHIE B8 A734,000,0008 7T (2013412 A31
H : 685,000,0007% 7T.) B 7 B 7881 1 5 &Y &2 ) 2k
RMABRERAELERIBAE - M2014F12831
B Eill# B g1 R - 48 % %8 49493,000,000/% 7T
(2013412 A31H : 467,000,000/ 7T) A R & 4
IR R TF5F o H b B 18 &5 18 1] 2 £ (R At
BiFo

II\I:I/

SN - 2014512 A31 H - 78 & B E 4th AT #0080 &
i 2 2 49 /4521,000,0007% 7T (20134124318 -

56,000,000/ 7T)  TEBEWEB AR 2 MR
RBAEHARBERNE TENRERANE  REE

R ERBEARF BB AR - F R BEHEE BR
BN AR EL TR E R ER - BORE R
ZAMBREREERRENREE

R EMSHA H2008F1A1ARE  RAH
P ST )X B 1) 5 IS B TR 3 B 20086 K LA 18
FENBIE AR EEMIOBTEHIFTET - 1
EAEMK BB ATRE R R HD25%ESM T
B BRAERRERL% R E W BEHRR AL E
?ﬁ%ﬁ%%?ﬁ?{iﬂ@%H%%-;E43,833,000;%7E{’Eﬁ
i R 7R TE B 8 (20134E12 4318 41,860,000/
TT) o R ZNER B A LA SR ) g R B 2 R
i = 2R AN AT B AR AR B - Hr R
A BN E D AR B F 2 B Z £154,581,000
7 7T (2013412 A31H : 117,351,000 7T ) 7 47
B EREANELRERIERE -



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
20. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For an overseas subsidiary, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
HK$12,525,000 (31 December 2013: HK$14,729,000). The rate applied is

the domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:
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20. EREHTE (&)
H—FHEINMBARIME NEEE SR IREF]
12,525,000 7t (20134128311 : 14,729,000
B 2B 2 EEHERE N IR E - PrER 2
MEBZITREHE-

REAMBRRRN2IME  ETEERRE
ENBECEFE - ATERZ2HMEHELEHRIE
e

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

R2014%12831H R2013F12A31H
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 T/
Deferred tax assets ERERBEE (28,204) (34,043)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR 6,287 2,085
(21,917) (31,958)

The Company ViN/NE]|

Accelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Total
RABERE BEFE BE
HK$000 T HK$000 F & HK$000 T/
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1A1AH 425 (425) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZERINR/ (FHA) (228) 415 187
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12HA31H 197 (10) 187
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REREAMR (GTA) 21 (208) (187)
At 31 December 2014 RW2014%12HA31H 218 (218) -

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$14,805,000 (31 December 2013: HK$59,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of HK$1,326,000 (31 December 2013: HK$59,000) of such losses. As at
31 December 2014, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the remaining HK$13,479,000 (31 December 2013: Nil) tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

2014128318 A A R Al AERE AR R A
FI B R 38 A B IE B 18 214,805,000 7T (2013
F12H31H :59,000/% 7T) - B Bt LLIEE B 6
1,326,000/ 7t (2013412 A31A : 59,000/ JT.)
HRELEHRBEE - R2014F12A318 . TH
15118 E51813,479,0007% 7T (2013412 H31H : &)
B o B TR 4 2R 6 22 I SO M oK 7 e R R R AT Y
HEE -MEEETEERENET.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%TiEEMENTS

21. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

In prior period, the Group entered into contracts with two insurance
companies which contain life insurance policies to insure against the
death of certain key members of management of the Group, with an
aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these contracts, the beneficiary
and policy holder is the Company. The Company has made upfront
payments of HK$36,178,000 in prior period. The monthly insurance costs
and administrative charges determined by the insurance companies will
be deducted from the account value. The insurers will declare interest
(including the guaranteed interest) to the Company on a monthly basis,
based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be determined at their
own discretion. Two of the key members left the Group on 7 December 2012
and 1 May 2013, the Group is in the process of shifting the life insured

quota to other key member(s).
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21. AERBREZRE

RIBA R AEEERERE ARG AL
ERREABRBRE AASEETEEEE
BERKEZAWEERR BRREBEEHNA
18,800,000 7T ( #8 % 7 £9145,800,0007% 7T ) °
BEZEEL SRARREFEAREKAR -
AR R @A B B X A T8 1 511836,178,000%
T BAIXMNHRERRBRDARETHITEHE A
BHREFBESNR -RBRART A AREES
BERARBREZFMEAARANSTRAE (B
FRBFE) - REE2E EEREM2012F12 7
7HKX2013FF5 A1 AE T ARBEIEEHZRASR
HEAHMEERE-
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22. INVENTORIES 22. 7€
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12831H R2013612A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F& T
Spare parts 1 63,935 70,657
Raw materials F# 531,633 829,755
Work-in-progress RGP 336,041 334,255
Finished goods 2K 370,288 402,105
1,301,897 1,636,772

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

23. EEXREBEWRIE

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

R2014%12A31H #2013F12A31H

HK$'000 F& T HK$000 F/& T

Trade receivables EERENE 1,169,921 1,009,495
Bills receivables ZEEWEE 238,978 285,866
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (21,386) (29,426)
1,387,513 1,265,935
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23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its

customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables

based on the payment due dates net of allowance for doubtful debts:
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23. EXREEEWRR (&)
REMBHIOREOREHATHES HER
SR ANCGREIR B RE B (ENBREEE)
BRI A ATINT

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

RN2014F12A31H M2013%12A31H

HK$'000 Fi& T HK$000 F%7T

Not yet due R3I5 873,404 838,616
Overdue 1-30 days wH-30K 239,743 214,253
Overdue 31-60 days #E31-60K 130,519 101,191
Overdue >60 days R A60K 143,847 111,875
1,387,513 1,265,935

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$239,743,000 (31 December
2013: HK$315,444,000) which was past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEERBEWNEMNHEFA aFEREERP
MEEERMATHEERB - FEHEN SR
TEERBRINEP BEPEERBEHTIU
i & o N 5% [ BE S 08 HA U SRR RO 8 3K R IORIR
BYEE R EERS

BREAEAEE S ERRIEEUGRIAR SR A R
IR& HERMEE /239,743,000 7T (2013612 A31
H 315,444,000/ 7T )  ERHEMKDAH - A
REEEXRYESAREHAZSHENERSE
BHERBEBELRDR AR TUE - AEE Y E
FRULEHRER R EE A EE Y ERZ S AR
FrAEMER -



EBEEE(RE)HFARAE]

corave e [T

A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%T%MENTS

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired are as

follows:
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23.EERZFBREWIKIE (&)
EEBERRENEEREBERGIBEAT

wh 3 7

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

RN2014%12A31H R2013F12A31H

HK$'000 T HK$'000 F% T

Overdue 1-30 days #HA1-30K 239,743 214,253
Overdue 31-60 days ##31-60% = 101,191
239,743 315,444

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are
generally not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360
days have been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,

determined by reference to past default experiences.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

BEEERYRIBA LT ANE - AR B E BB
360KHI P & 5 MEMRIE 2 BETHREA - 1tk Th
AR IR 1B 1 48 B 18 HA #B B 360K 1Y 2 5 JE W IR
— MR EIEUE - 60K E360K  fH B 2 3 FE
BRI EZRE S BL 2 EBERKER
PREETE MaThe it o

REBREBEHMT

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013

R2014%12A31H R2013F12H31H

HK$'000 T HK$000 T/

Balance at beginning of the year FEEH 29,426 40,902

Currency realignment INEREEE - 1
Impairment loss reversed on trade and EEREBRENIERERE

bills receivables, net BEFE (2,935) (2,245)

Amounts written-off as uncollectible E S Il i B £ B (5,105) (9,232)

Balance at end of the year FiRiEH 21,386 29,426

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included
in the allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate balance of
HK$21,386,000 (31 December 2013: HK$29,426,000) was individually
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

2014 12A31H - BIEERKREEBA HERS
21,386,0007% Jt (2013412 A31H : 29,426,000
BTN AEEEEREREWFECEREE
RERE ARENER LT ERITH MK

o
an °
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Annual Report 2014

24. A FIE - RERHEMEKKE

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 H2013%F RW20144% R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 F%&7 HK$000 F&ET HK$'000 F& 7 HK$000 F& 1
Value-added tax recoverable AREEER 23,331 36,816 = -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 ~ A 208 I th fE U 508 101,088 154,330 4,054 4311
124,419 191,146 4,054 4311
25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25.fTE€®mM I A
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
Current Current
nE
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 #H20135 20144 R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 F% 7 HK$000 F/% T HK$'000 F&x HK$'000 Fi# 7T
Derivative financial assets TELWMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts RENERL - 14,170 - 12,238
Derivative financial liabilities fTEcmas
Foreign currency forward contracts EHINER L 1,686 - 1,686 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ESTATEMEN'I_'S

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The principal terms of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion
At 31 December 2014:

3 contracts to sell USD10,000,000 USD1:RMB6.0845 to 6.0900

in total*

At 31 December 2013:

41 contracts to sell USD137,000,000 USD1:RMB6.0648 to 6.3125
in total*

3 contracts to sell USD6,000,000 USD1:RMB6.3065 to 6.3245

in total

The above foreign currency forward contracts will mature within one year

from the end of the reporting period.

These contracts are entered into by the Company

The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the
applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by counterparty

financial institutions.

26. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 6.00% (31 December 2013: 0.01% to 6.00%) per

annum.

corave e [ EETR
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25. 0T €M T A (&)

FEEFWOT

HESE Emg

M20145%128318 :

IMEHAE 1ZE T3 AR B6.08457T
10,000,0003 7T H) = AR #6.09007T
=¥ ok

M2013%12A318:

A1 EHAEE 1L H AR 6.06487T
137,000,000% tH) = AR#6.31257TC
=¥ ok

IMEHAE 1ZE T3 AR M6.30657T
6,000,000 JTHY = AR #¥6.32457T
=¥
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26. HIRTERURBITERRR
&

REBITFRRRTEH DIRTIBEREN

F0.01%%£6.00% (2013%12H431H : 0.01% =

6.00% )T & e
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. EEREBEMNRE
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12831H R2013F12A31H
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 T/
Trade payables EEENTE 482,710 515,406
Bills payables FRENTIE 318,686 486,375
801,396 1,001,781

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the payment % 2 B FUIBIR N BB E NBREB OO T

due dates:
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
RN2014%12A31H R2013%12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$'000 F% 7T
Not yet due KEH 394,750 458,408
Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K 41,069 42 833
Overdue 31-60 days #HI31-60K 21,784 6,450
Overdue >60 days B HR B B0K 25,107 7,715
482,710 515,406

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end of the reporting R ¥R&E B4 NEB 2 i A =1 BN RIEH KT
period. B o

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120 B EHFHEEHAI0RE120K - REBD &K
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure I EREBEERE  UEREMNEFHENMEE
that payables are within the credit time frame. BAPR A ©
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

31 December 2014 20145412 A31H

28. HitWENRBERETER

The Group The Company
A58 LN

At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
R2014%F 20135 R2014%F 201346
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 F#Ex  HK$000 F&Er  HK$'000 FET HK$000 F% T
Other payables HibERFIE 86,318 123971 351 240
Accruals i ER 183,370 215,828 10,516 9,398
269,688 339,799 10,867 9,638

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

30. DEFERRED INCOME

In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000

for the purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise

as income over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment
of the relevant conditions. An amount of HK$1,458,000 (31 December
2013: HK$1,458,000) was amortised as income during the year, with a

corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets previously recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, deferred tax arising on deferred

income was reversed due to offset against tax losses.

29. RFEZEBRBRRFIA

BERFAREER 2ENEEREE-

30. IELE WA

20084 » AN £ B B I — I8 BT 4 R572,912,000
B ARBEETEE B RN ERAER GG
BIZABEEFRAFHERRBRA -FR B
1,458,000 JT (2013412 A31H : 1,458,0007%

TO) R WERERTHER
fEH R

BIETRIEEE

REE2013F12A31H IEFE  BEHRASIEZ
REMIAD R A BEEERIEEE -
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK SLLEBTRHEMEE HBITEX

OVERDRAFTS
The Group The Company
AEE £47
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 R2013%F MW2014F R2013F
12A31H 12A318 12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 F%& 7 HK$000 F/&ET HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F& T
Secured borrowings: BEBEE:
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (Wit @) 32,393 33,300 12,737 13,644
Import bills loans (nofe (a)) EOER (M) = 54,978 = -
Unsecured borrowings: EEREE:
Bank loans RITER 777,518 737,971 - -
Import bills loans HEOEHX 188,589 527,478 = -
Bank overdrafts RITEX 1,439 - - -
Other loan (note (b)) HER (H70b) - 1817 - 1817
999,939 1,355,544 12,737 15,461
Repayable as follows: BT FIEEEE -
On demand or within one year (nofe (c) ~ EEREBHIFR
(Hit(c) 786,270 838,946 12,737 15,461
More than one year, but not exceeding 1 BT BiE2EF
two years 213,669 302,928 - -
More than two years, but not exceeding 24 JA 18 7 FRiB5F
five years - 213,670 - -
999,939 1,355,544 12,737 15,461
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or il : JEZ KB 8 S 1F A B ]
due within one year shown under SBEEARHAREER
current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within ~1FEREBMEITEE
one year (784,831) (837,129) (12,737) (13,644)
- other loan due within one year - 1EREHNEMER
(note (b)) (B ) - (1,817) - (1,817)
— bank overdrafts —BITEX (1,439) - - -
Amounts due after one year 1F RIS R 213,669 516,598 - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EST%T%MENTS

31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Bank loans of HK$32,393,000 and import bills loans of HK$Nil (31 December 2013:
HK$33,300,000 and HK$54,978,000) are secured by certain life insurance policies
as detailed in note 21.

(b)  The other loan of HK$Nil (31 December 2013: HK$1,817,000) is unsecured and

borrowed from an independent third party, charged at 3.99% per annum.

(c)  The current liabilities include bank loans of HK$12,737,000 (2013: HK$13,644,000)
that are not scheduled to repay within one year. They are classified as current
liabilities as the related loan agreements contain a clause that provides the lenders
with an unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion.

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 1% to 2.8% (31
December 2013: 1% to 3.35%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus a
spread, ranging from 1.3% to 2% (31 December 2013: 1.3% to 3.0%) or
cost of fund plus a spread, ranging from 1.5% to 2% (31 December 2013:
1.5% to 2.0%) or SIBOR plus a spread, 2% (31 December 2013: 1.0% to
2.0%) per annum in Hong Kong. The average effective interest rates of the
bank borrowings of the Group is 2.52% (31 December 2013: 2.54%) per
annum. Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry interest at fixed-
rates ranging from 2.34% to 3.43% (31 December 2013: 0.85% to 2.86%)

per annum.

The bank borrowings of the Company are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, 1% (31 December 2013:
1% to 3.35%) or SIBOR plus a spread, 1% (31 December 2013: 1%) per
annum. The average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the
Company is 1.31% (31 December 2013: 3.27%) per annum.

In addition, the average effective interest rate of the bank overdrafts of the
Group was 3.54% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2014 (31
December 2013: Nil).

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the year ended 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group had complied with all covenant

ratios.
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. /A&
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
M2014%12831H #2013%12A31H
No. of shares HK$000 No. of shares HK$000
ROHE FAT ROHE FET
Authorised: EERAE:
At beginning of the year RREEHRE 1,400,000,000 280,000 1,400,000,000 280,000
The concept of authorised share capital ER2014F3738 KR 2
was abolished on 3 March 2014 EERAR R (M)
(Note) (1,400,000,000) (280,000) = -
At the end of the year RREFRLER - - 1,400,000,000 280,000
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
M2014%12831H R2013F12A31H
No. of shares HK$000 No. of shares HK$000
ROEE FAET ROHE FET
Issued and fully paid: BORBRRE:
At beginning of the year REEERGE 1,203,046,960 240609 1,203,046,960 240,609
Transfer from share premium and capital 1R ER2014F3A38 £ 2
redemption reserve upon abolition of FRERRIED ERRR
nominal value under the new Hong AERBRHEEREAERD
Kong Companies Ordinance effective AR (HiE)
on 3 March 2014 (Note) - 621,602 - -
At the end of the year REF B R 1,203,046,960 862,211 1,203,046,960 240,609

Note: The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 (the Ordinance) came into effect on

3 March 2014. Under s.135 of the Ordinance, shares in a company do not have a

nominal value. Accordingly, the concept of authorised share capital is abolished. The

no nominal value regime applies to the Company. Following the transitional provisions

in the Ordinance, any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account

and capital redemption reserve at the beginning of 3 March 2014 became part of the

Company’s share capital.

The use of share capital from 3 March 2014 is governed by s.149 of the Ordinance.

However, the application of the amount transferred from share premium account at

the beginning of 3 March 2014 is governed by the transitional provision in s.38 of

Schedule 11 to the Ordinance.
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which was
adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25
January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012. The
primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible mean of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such other purposes
as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to
full time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2002 Scheme.
The Company may seek approval from shareholders of the Company in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any employee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, subject to approval from shareholders of the Company. Options
granted must be taken within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (“Holdup period”). An
option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Holdup period and expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company and will be at least the

highest of the followings:

=M
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

(a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17
September 2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$1.29. Details of the movements of those

options and other information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the same date. Further details are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover only
directors and full-time employees. In addition, there is no specific period
for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup period,
which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of share

options as they think as appropriate.

The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January 2021.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were

HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively.
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31 December 2014 2014412H31H
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS BBURGBAERZARR S (&)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options — F&RIFFE AR GRIE2002F 518 %201 1F:1EIE
granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme. RLBEREZZHER-
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Forfeited 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2014  during the year 2014
A2014%F R2014%F
1A18 12A31H
rE ®RHEBEH THEE i R AT 8 FRERK 4 R AT BE
Category 1: Directors
EERE ==
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
BERTEE 20024 201099/ 17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114 201148 H18H 1.21%7T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 - - -
BEBE L 20024  2010%F9F17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114 201148H18H 1.21%87T
Total Directors # % & 11,200,000 - 11,200,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
2l BB 20024  2010%F9AF17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,448,000 (362,000) 2,086,000
20114 20115H18H 1918 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 8,300,000 (1,500,000) 6,800,000
20114 201148H18H 1.21%7T
Total Employees & 8 & 3£ 15,348,000 (1,862,000) 13,486,000
Two categories " 4E Bl & 3t 26,548,000 (1,862,000) 24,686,000

Exercisable at the end of the year
RRFERERA TITE 8,846,000 14,286,000
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
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Outstanding at

Z (&)

Outstanding at

1 January Forfeited 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2013  during the year 2013
A2013%F R2013F
1A1H 12A31H
rE RHBH 1TEME i R AT FRERK 18 RATE
Category 1: Directors
FIUR-EF
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
BRTEE 20024  201049AH17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114  201148H18H 12147t
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) -
BmEHEL 20024  20104F9H17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20114  201148AH18H 12147t
Total Directors # =& #t 15,800,000 (4,600,000) 11,200,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 6,600,000 (2,000,000) 4,600,000
Fof:EE 20024  201049A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,634,000 (186,000) 2,448,000
20114  201145H18H 19147t
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 12,200,000 (3,900,000) 8,300,000
20114  201148H18H 12147t
Total Employees {& & & # 21,434,000 (6,086,000) 15,348,000
Two categories R 48 B4 37,234,000 (10,686,000) 26,548,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
RRFERERA TITE 5,380,000 8,846,000
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 3[URBAERBZ2ARRS (&)
(Continued)

Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are 201049 A 17 B R #E20024F 51 2| #% 1 = BE AL
exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in R A20144F3 8178 £201743 8178 8ifE 5 3(&
three tranches, being FEER T LAFT(E - BI

e 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options e 201443 A17H E2017F3A178 (&% 1k
granted are exercisable) BB 230.00% 7] T1714)

e 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options e 201543 A17H 201743 A178 (&% 1k
granted are exercisable) B R 260.00%7] T174)

e 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are o 2016%F3A17H Z201743A17H (FTEE
exercisable) Wz BEREN T176)

Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are  R201145A18H R E20114 51 819% 1 2 B fc
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three  A] A201245A18H £2015%F5H17H 8ifE 5 31
tranches, being P& B T DAFT (3 - A

e 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options e 201295H18H £201545A17H (&% 1h
granted are exercisable) B HERE 232.52%A] F17{F)

e 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options e  2013%5H18H £201545A17H (&% 1h
granted are exercisable) B HERE 265.04%0] F17{F)

e 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are e 201445H18H £2015%5A17H (FTA D
exercisable) Bl BN TIT{E)
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are

exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to 20.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to 40.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to 80.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19
August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS BPUKRGAER 2ARXS (&)

(Continued)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

Under the
2002 Scheme

Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

BREZAFEEDRAB ZEAEAEE:

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 18 May 18 August

2010 2011 2011

B152002F 5+ & RIE2011F & BIE2011F 58

M2010F9A17H M2011465H18H ®2011468H18H

1% i 19 BB B R B iR IR B % i BB I

Number of options HEkESAE 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value BEBHZAFEER HK$15,812,000/% 7T HK$2,718,000/ 7T  HK$13,156,0005& 7T
Grant date share price RHBBZRE HK$1.29% ¢ HK$1.807% 7T HK$1.21% 7T
Exercise price T{EE HK$1.2978 7T HK$1.91%8 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor REBETHEEE 2 2 2
Contractual life A #F B 6.5 years & 4 years 4 4-6 years 4
Expected volatility TEEH K 1R 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield & 8= 0% 0.568% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate 2 2 By 1) 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The risk-
free interest rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17 September

2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the share options

granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

T BRI O IR A A Rl A4E6.5F R E B
ZIELEEETE KA R FTERA 2 R R R =
ThiR ¥R & 78 E R fh 4R 8] 7R 2 (yield of Hong Kong
Sovereign Curve) (312010F9A17HE R 2 B
Bt REBINEEREHBIRE (52011458

18H M2011F8A18HERE 2 EMRE)E T -
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,244,000 (31 December
2013: net reversal of HK$77,000) for the current year in relation to share
options granted by the Company. Out of the amount, total expense of
HK$1,043,000 (31 December 2013: net reversal of HK$80,000) is related

to the directors of the Company.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 1.9 years (31 December 2013: 2.9 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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34. RESERVES 34. #fE
The Company PiN/NES]|
Capital Share
Share  redemption options Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
X Bk
BROEE - HERE e REEA wE

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T T/ETT TBTT T/ETT T/

At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 621,392 210 13,663 616,584 1,251,849
Profit and total comprehensive income 724 & & 2 B

for the year BE - - - 872,133 872,133
Equity-settled share-based payments — SAREZAEE LR AEME 2

reverse R - - (60) - (60)
At 31 December 2013 R20136128318 621,392 210 13603 1488717  2,123922
Transfer upon abolition of nominal M2014F3 A3 B EEBR R (D

value of shares and capital HEREREL FHEE

redemption reserve on -

3 March 2014 (621,392) (210) - - (621,602)
Loss and total comprehensive EFEBBERZERZBE

expense for the year - - - (200,038) (200,038)
Dividends paid BKRE - - - (24,061) (24,061)
Equity-settled share-based payments — WAMEZR & E LA D AERE 2

(kN - - 1,243 - 1,243

At 31 December 2014 720146124318 - - 14,846 1,264,618 1,279,464
35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. EXEmER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will AEBEEEAZ BN ERERASESERE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to BB ERL FAKZBNSESEERZHEHN
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The  HEFE - AFHEZRFARR - AEEHEE

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. REEETF—F

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the AEEHEARLEREERS (FHEIEN IR
borrowings disclosed in note 31, and equity attributable to owners of the HEMEE) RARREAE AREED (B1EC%
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. TR R ) ©
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. 5EXRAMERE (&)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going AR B & BIRFEH LR ERERE - (EAR
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and ~ — &80 EE & £ B & AN 89 ik 2K B2 % 78 79 48 78 &
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of R -RIEEEMESR AEBEG B BREME 3
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the 77 37 I% & B& B B% {7 DA K2 3517 3 {8 765 LA S iy H 2 g
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the & AZLH# -

issue of new debts.

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36. €@ T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) & T EHER
The Group The Company
AEE N
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 H2013F 20144 R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets LREE
Available-for-sales financial assets AHHESRERE
(Investment in life insurance policies) (ANBRRREZEE) 37,850 37,346 37,850 37,346
Loans and receivables (including cash and EFRREKZE (BEHE K
cash equivalents) ZRBELER) 2,372,857 2,444,115 3,030,758 3,298,172
Derivative financial instruments TEEBIA - 14,170 - 12,238
Financial liabilities tRAE
Amortised cost BHEMAR 1,924,014 2,513,082 954,760 1,016,271

Derivative financial instruments TESRTIA 1,686 - 1,686 -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group and the Company include
investment in life insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, derivative financial instruments, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
bank and other borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate

the risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities and derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company that are considered

significant by the management are as follows:

RHMEE
31 December 2014 2014%12H31H
36. 2R T A (&)
(b) WA ERE B R RBEE
REERARFTNTEZCRTABRFBEAFTRRER
BRE EENMFEBREWHIE B EYFIE
BB A RIFTR, R B R R BRI SRITER
RITESREE S TESRIE EXRFEREN
IR BB FRIE - RIFEIRBR A SRR - $R1T
REMEERRITER ZE2MIAZHBD
REBMITRE - BZECRTAFBOHER
BETSRAR (E8RRLANERR)  EEER
Kon@ a2 E R T X#HIIA B AR EZER
BRHER - EREETRREEZSRR  AERE
iRy 70 RO BREUE & 1 i

wh 3 7

5 m

() EEERE

AEBETEREBINER S HAKE L MINE
[N

REEETE K EIEIMER K - ARELR K B A F 2
WRBUEE Bt ARB ORI EAINESRL
AR IR % 5 g o

RHEEHR BEEERRBEANETEE AR
ALINESIENEREERERAERITESR
TEAMKEELNT
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
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36. ¢RI TH (&)
(b) IBEBREEEELREE (8)

TS5 mE (E)
() E®mEE(E)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: BEEEEREKBE:
The Group
xEE
Assets Liabilities
-1 8
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
R20145 20135 R20145 M2013%F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31AH 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET TET
usb E 891,440 840,431 712,727 1,106,801
RMB AR 737,663 793,093 303,745 413,966
CAD i 3,879 5,000 - -
LKR Bt 776 1,476 2,619 -
HK$ BT 2,057 6,347 1,492 3,224
British Pound (“GBP”) B 87 3,292 - -
EURO BT 14 2,318 - -
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") HNEE 1,578 4990 1,656 1,799
The Company
AR
Assets Liabilities
BE af

At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
R20145 R2013% 20145 20135
12A31H 12A31A 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET FET FET
usb e 41,431 76,615 - -
RMB AR 5,917 61,347 - -
CAD illba 1,558 2,360 - -
GBP B 34 3,245 - -
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36. ﬁEﬂIE (#&)
VBREREEEREREE (8)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mGEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EER (E&)
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA
The Group The Company
S| KAT
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
N2014% 20135 201445 R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAET FET FET FET
Derivative financial assets fTEEHEE
Foreign currency forward contracts to BAANREBRELETH
buy RMB and sell USD EENELL - 14,170 - 12238
Derivative financial liabilities TESHEE
Foreign currency forward contracts to BAAREBRELETH
buy RMB and sell USD RHINER L 1,686 - 1,686 -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD
and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group
entities.

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign

AEBEEFRET ARE - MTRET (EZ
CERERABEETENNREEETRE) K
@JH’ZMO

TREAMEY LAINEL R EEEREEE
FHEXRZES%MEBRE - AR B T ERTHEE

B BT R TR e 5% BRI ZE IR A B A EL
2 WMHMNE R\ B & E TR I KT pE A IR F B ROFT
HATRANGRE L X - FRENMEBREHEAR
REDNEDIENEBBRARITESRTA X
MEFEILERMIMNE RSB HREEME ST ED R

l>

currency denominated monetary items and derivative financial instruments ~ THEZ AF(EE - RULEXE  EIMNE L HBEEE
and adjusts their translation or fair value in the case of derivative financial %IJJ %é’iﬁﬂ'ﬁ?’é EFEBARF LM
instruments at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. On [ 2 IR - B D AT Th1%2013F K AE A

this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year
where foreign currencies strengthen against the functional currencies of the
corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2013.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
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36. $EITH (&)
(b) IBEBREEEEREE (8)

TS5 mE (E)
() E®mEE(E)
BREST (&)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: BEEEEREEBE:
The Group The Company
A5E VN
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20135 20144 R2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H318
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FAT FET
Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit/(loss) ~ REEMABH,/ (FE)
for the year B/ CRd)
HK$ against RMB BTHARE - 173 = -
USD against CAD ELAMT 1,513 1,120 = -
RMB against HK$ ARERBTL 21,375 18,949 296 3,067
CAD against HK$ MTHAT 192 248 78 118
23,080 20,490 374 3,185
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. T H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies VBERREEERREE (8)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) TS EE ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EBEEEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT (&)
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRITA:
The Group The Company
A&EH N
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
020145 R2013F H20145 A2013F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profitiloss)  REEHAAT/ (HE)
for the year #m/ Ced)
Foreign currency forward contracts to BAANREBRELETH
buy RMB and sell USD BESNEAD 3,802 55,341 3,802 53,017
(ir)  Interest rate risk (i) FZF @

The Group and the Company are mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate ~ AEERARAAMRSREN KR B F EH)E S
risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is ~RITASHRREEBBH AEENBRTHFER
the Group'’s policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so 17 f& B 7% B F & BURME 2 FE B F & @l B o &
as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest =B H IR © IR E M E A F ZE PR BAREE A
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the ~ BILFHENEEELZ FERTREER LKD) -
Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings. In light of low interest ~ BRIPMER EFER @ —BREEH  AEEE R
rate expected to be maintained in long period of time, the Group shall B EHME XS WL H A @S & LT EEER X
monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate financial & °

instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for both non-derivative (included variable-rate borrowings
only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances is not
significant) and derivative instruments at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
(31 December 2013: 50) basis points increase or decrease in interest rate
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s and
the Company’s pre-tax profit/(loss) for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$4,162,000 and HK$64,000 (31 December 2013: increase/decrease in

pre-tax profit by HK$6,019,000 and HK$68,000), respectively.
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36. 2R T A (&)

(b) BAFERREEBEREE (&)

G (E)
(i) FIEE L
UK E DT
TOGBRESTREITELE (ERIEZEE
5 HEERARBITEBRIAEZ BRI E
R) BT T AR20144 K2013F12 431 H &9 F)
RRBET - BRADN NBERREPRHAEE
MEBEYBEEAFREAFENGAREE -ME
ZEE A B AR RA KRR Ty A0ME (2013
F12A31H :5018) ERMARE  REEEEEF
KA BB BT o

2 (#&)

BIEPTEBITEEM S - A E LT B50(E
BB MM AEMEEEFITE BIAEE LK
RRAMRFEBAAF, (BE) 5 BIEM,~
B0 4,162,0007 7T & 64,000/8 7T (2013412 A31
B : AT A F 800,95 46,019,000 7T k68,000

ABTT) °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the
Group and the Company which will cause a financial loss due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees

provided is arising from:

o the carrying amounts of the recognised financial assets as stated in the

statements of financial position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees

issued by the Company as disclosed in note 39.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers
with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2014,
a net impairment loss of HK$2,935,000 in respect of the trade and bills

receivables was reversed.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's and the Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group and the Company is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

reputable credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group and the Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

=M

31 December 2014 20145412 A31H
36. €@ T A (&)
(b) BBEREREE R EREE

II\I:I/

(%)

= Em R

M2014F12A318  AEB R AAREREF 7R
REETETRRUMBERMEBMBEINK
SRR T SIEESE

=BEE

FERAKRMEVN ERASHMEENRR
(ERDN

o PE39PTIERBARRME LT BERZ
AR BEE A

BHEEERER AEENEEREEEZR—HA
EERETEERE FESEIRAMELET
FF o R REURET TR M B EE - EREE
HEERETAERIGELZERERCHOT
Poltsh AEBEFEHIRERRERNEERS
& T ) A U 2] BRBE - AT (R ph A SR R o) BRBE 1R
RARSRHEB K - HE2014F12A318ILFE

RE
A

AEBEEREENFERBRKFURRDRERKS
82,935,000% 7T, ©

BESN - AR BHER TR Z B E B A BB iR
METAEMBRRREMBER -FUMS
ARRBEERRAEERARFNEERREX
TR o
AEBERARANRDESERERRER BAY

FHHRARE
HERTT

BENEEFARBLE TREENR

RERNETREEFRRITHRBERIN K
SERARBTEEHEREFEERR B
BN ZEEF 7

e
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's and the Company’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures

compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group and the Company relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2014, the
available unutilised banking facilities of the Group and the Company are
approximately HK$3,383 million and HK$233 million (31 December 2013:
HK$1,763 million and HK$333 million), respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company’'s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivatives financial liabilities including foreign currency forward contracts
based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and
the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest are floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting

period.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflow/(inflow) on these derivatives are shown on the

tables.
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36. 2R T A (&)

(b) BAFERREEBEREE (&)
REBRDESRRE AEERARTTER

R@FHERERRREIKINRE RERREE
B UBNAEERARRLENRSMRERS
MERPNTE ERESERRITERENER
B W HELR B T ARRE B R A

RS ARERAQRIFERITEREERE
ZRBE S IRMN2014F12A310 A& E K
ARAMAIHRERERBITEERINOR
3,383,000,000/% 7T 233,000,000/ 7T (20134
12431H :1,763,000,0007% 7t %333,000,000/%

JT) e

TRFAVNRBHREEEERTEBRARBIT
LeRmEEMTESRARG (BEEHINESH)
MR TARZIEBER - RITEERAE  ZRT)
BRAKERANAR A ERERNKNZT HH
RESRBENABRASRERY ZRER
MNEERAERERE - ENBRAFEBHNEZR
BAR- RMRESBERBERR 2 ERE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. ¢@ T H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BEREEBEZEREE (8)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
The Group AEEE
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2014
R20145
mETY  SRUEAD AERRE 12A31A

ERAE EERX 12388 3MBAZELF BiB1E hREE HREE
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEx FEx FEx FE7 FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER

Trade, bills and other payables 2% ZEREMERTE - 549,525 243,943 50,507 - 843,975 843,975
Amounts due to non-controlling RIFERRRFE

shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank overdraft, bank and RITEY RIOREMEE

other borrowings

- fixed rate —EE 1.74 62,739 54,773 52,822 - 170,334 169,051

- variable rate -8 2.71 154,962 154,439 320,900 216,039 846,340 830,888

847,326 453,155 424,229 216,039 1,940,749 1,924,014

Derivatives - gross settlement EIE-NAELEE
Foreign currency forward contracts REIMNESH

- outflow — 54,297 23,270 - - 77,567 N/A
— inflow -mA (53,161) (22,720) = - (75,881) N/A
1,136 550 - - 1,686 1,686
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2013
R2013F
mEF  SRIEAR RERRE 12A31A

ERME EEX 1Z3@A  3EAZEIF BELF mEEE HIREE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEEBER

Trade, bills and other payables 2E EREREMEMNTE - 640,061 379,756 57,621 - 1,077,438 1,077,438
Amounts due to non-controlling RIFERBRRFE

shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE

- fixed rate -E8 2.53 51,196 51,356 50,616 - 153,168 151,817

- variable rate —28 243 191,933 245415 268,132 532,860 1,238,340 1,203,727

963,290 676,527 376,369 532,860 2,549,046 2,513,082
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
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36. ¢RI TH (&)
(b) BIBEBREEEELREE (8)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
The Company /A
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2014
R2014%
NELY DSRIUEAR AERRS 12A31A
BERA= EEX 1238 3fBAZLE BB1E HEAE HREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities kTESRER
Amounts due to subsidiaries RIBRRFE - 942,023 - - - 942,023 942,023
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
- variable rate -%8 1.22 12,750 - - - 12,750 12,737
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREY - 4,581,000 - - - 4,581,000 =
5,535,773 - - - 5,535,773 954,760
Derivatives - gross settlement fTEIE-NARLE
Foreign currency forward contracts REMNERD
- outflow =it 54,297 23,270 - - 77,567 N/A
~ inflow —mA (53,161) (22,720) - - (75,881) N/A
1,136 550 - - 1,686 1,686
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2013
W2013%F
mEF  SRIEAR RERRE 12A31A
EBRM= EEK 1237 3EAZIF BiBlE MELE HEHEE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENGE S - 1,000,810 - - - 1,000,810 1,000,810
Bank and other borrowings BRIIREMEE
- fixed rate -E8 399 458 916 458 - 1,832 1,817
- variable rate —28 1.21 13,658 - - - 13,658 13,644
Financial guarantee contracts BBEREY - 3,433,000 - - - 3,433,000 -
4,447 926 916 458 - 4,449,300 1,016,271
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Company could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit

losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from/to subsidiaries, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, bank overdrafts, financial guarantees issued

and bank and other borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills

payables, other payables and bank overdrafts approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s and the Company’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2014 except for derivative

financial instruments and investment in life insurance policies.
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31 December 2014 2014512 A31H
36. BT A (&)
FEEREE B IZNRBUR

II\I:I/

(%)

mBELEE ()

PR BERANSHEBERERE T IHEH
EREF|ROFR AARBRREEML A RE
AENZERTE REXNRERKZEY A2
ARARUEHARBERLINEFNEE-
AT - WTBHAFTRECRE - RFHF I REERRER
RRZAEM ML AT AZARFEFIHA
WRER B REFIRAZEE BB Z T

i 5 °

fis ) F By & 2 BB BRI E HRFEE 2 7
KRG EF B LMTAEzeRAETFIETA
LA BB PR E o

NFEE
(i) WHUAFPEEGTEBZZHBTA
THUNRFEEFEZERTARERERER
ReHE 28X REEREREGOR  H i EKEIE
B RERTR, R BARMKIE BERRE
JEAT SRR ~ BB RIR - ROOFFEEBR AR R - iR
TEX DRENMBEREBITREMER-

HRBEEE RELFERAREER EXME
EREAEOR A RAEOR X R R IR RN

B HiENFRAERRTEXNERHEREELQT
EERE-
BROTEEBRTAMASRRREZREN A&

B R ADRIRR AR EEA AT ENERT AN
BREE - BEE1H 20134 M2014F12A31H A
FTEETEEAEZR-



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

31 December 2014 2014412 A31H
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s and the Company's
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified and is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs.

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment in life insurance policies and derivative financial instruments are

grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year and prior

year.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated using
generally accepted pricing models based on quoted forward exchange rates
and discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield curves of

interest rates provided by counterparty financial institutions.

The fair value of investment in life insurance policies is determined based
on account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by

insurers.
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36. 2R T A (&)

(c) RFEME (&)

(i) URAFEETEZEMITA (F)
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXRAEE
The Group KE
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
20145128310 R2013F12H31H
HK$'000 & T HK$'000 F %71
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BENERGAEVBRERBIELREL
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: BAREY
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment —BEME HBBERERE 28,092 86,950
- additions to intangible assets -REEWEE 338 14,909
28,430 101,859
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for BHABREONEARY
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment -BEWME BHERLE 56,178 122,418
- additions to intangible assets -NEEWEE 310 314
56,488 122,732
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37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. EAREIE (&)
The Company PIN/N]
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12A31H ®2013F12A31R
HK$'000 F %7 HK$000 F/% T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BENBRIERRREELREL
in the financial statements in respect of: BARREY
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment —BEME BHEREE - 704
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for BHEEREANELRAST
in respect of:
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment ~BEME BBEREE 331 2,400
38. OPERATING LEASES 38. £ EHE
The Group as lessee REBEREAMEA
The Group
AEE
2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F %7 HK$000 F/% T
Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease EEEREEREMINM
during the year: BEREXE:
Land and buildings THREF 44,721 47,175
Plant and machinery 1 5,217 5,200

49,938 52,375
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38. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 38. ¢ EMHE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBIERAMA (8)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future A ¥RE B4R - NEBE g A Al BUS £ B 8 8 R 2k
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall &K E X HAIER N5 EH A 27

due as follows:

The Group
AEHE
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
R2014%12A31H R2013%12A31H
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
T REF BER#E THRET Bz R

HK$'000 &7  HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/& HK$000 F/% T

Within one year 1F/ 29,626 3,825 47317 4,209
In the second to fifth year inclusive E)FEEFEN(ERME

BIEER) 46,446 1,164 90,509 4,440

Over five years SEPA 5,471 - 47 324 -

81,543 4,989 185,150 8,649

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for “EHESHNALEEREETHAE THEL
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases EREMNEMES SEFOHESERM+
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and I RAEF TN F1E25F 2 [H > BLEE M2 R
buildings and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no  F1&E5F 7 - WRBHATH S LHE-

contingent rental arrangement.



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEHmERM T

31 December 2014 20144 12H31H

38. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 38. £EHE (&)
The Group as lessor AEBERAHEA

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during REFR REBERREWEMBRENHES U A
the year was approximately HK$8,508,000 (2013: HK$2,423,000). The 428 %) /8,508,000 7T (20134 : 2,423,000/

related outgoings amounted to HK$746,000 (2013: HK$53,000). JT) > BB X H A746,0007 JT (20134 : 53,000
BIT) ©

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in =~ RIREHK AEBHEFRAEWES T LN

respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.  REFEHEEW AT :

The Group
rEE

At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
20145128310 M2013%12A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& 1
Within one year 1R 9,284 4,492
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEEEFEN(EREMEREER) 25,954 10,743
35,238 15,235

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments or RIREELR RAFWESE KL EHERKERL

arrangements at the end of the reporting period. BEo



EBEEE(RE)HARSE]

20145 FH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %T%T%MENTS

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY

The Company has given limited guarantees to various banks to secure
general banking and loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$4,581,000,000 (31 December 2013: HK$3,433,000,000). As
at 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount utilised by these subsidiaries
amounted to HK$1,281,617,000 (31 December 2013: HK$1,755,666,000).

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group deregistered its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Fountain Set (Macau) Limited. Fountain Set

(Macau) Limited was inactive before the deregistration.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group sold its 70% equity
interests in BEEMUE/KE AR AT to an independent third party, at an
aggregate consideration of RMB18,858,000 (equivalent to HK$23,743,000).
In addition, the Group sold its 100% equity interests in Cadicol Management
Consultants Limited to Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Executive Director of the

Company), at an aggregate consideration of HK$1,673,000.

REMEKBE AR AR is engaged in construction and managing of sewage
treatment plant and Cadicol Management Consultants Limited was set up to

hold a corporate club debenture.

=M

31 December 2014 2014512 A31H

39. HARE

ZAN/N

ADRBEMEZHEBRITEHE T ARG ER
2%4,581,000,000;‘%73 (20134 12A318 :
3,433,000,0008 ) FRZERITHTE
THEBRAR —RBITREREENER R
2014F12R31H ZEWB AR CERNE
# /1,281,617,000% 7T (2013412 A31H :
1,755,666,0007 7T.) °

II\I:I/

40. HEKE R
RBZE20135F12A31R L FEAR - AEBEBUHE
i H 2 &} /B 2 7] Fountain Set (Macau) Limited °
FEUH 3T B AT
e

» Fountain Set (Macau) Limited 7 £

REZE2014F12A318 EFERN  AEENER
8 AR 18,858,0007T (8% 723,743,000/ 7T )
HE AR R MEKREER DR 2 70%KE T —
BEUE =TT WS AR B AR EL673,000
7 7t i & H R Cadicol Management Consultants
Limited 2 100% % 1 T B 88 % 5£ 4 (AR R 2 7T
BE)-

RETNURKB AR A RN 5 /K 6 IR B A 22 %
‘& 12 - ffi Cadicol Management Consultants Limited

REBELRGMEHFMAL -
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. HEHB AT (&)
The net assets of these disposed subsidiaries and effects on cash flows of ZEDHEZHBRARNSEHERRZEEF
the Group at the respective dates of disposal were as follows: BEREAEERESREZFENT
Cadicol
Management
Consultants REMAKRE
Limited BRARF 2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$000 F8r  HK$000 F/#L  HK$'000 FET  HK$000 F87T
Cash consideration BeRE 1,673 23,743 25,416 -

Analysis of assets and liabilities over ~ YOk ERFHIEZEER

which control was lost: BEZAH:
Bank balances and cash BITEBRRRS - 1,843 1,843 -
Trade and other receivables HE R EA YNGR 195 48,788 48,983 -
Trade and other payables HEREMEMNTIE - (12,465) (12,465) -
Net assets disposed of FrhEzEEFE 195 38,166 38,361 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HENBRRZBKE:
Consideration RE 1,673 23,743 25,416 -
Net assets disposed of FILECEEFE (195) (38,166) (38,361) -
Fair value of 30% interest retained FIRE30% @ . AT ER - 16,204 16,204 -
Translation reserve released BOE S EE - 1,435 1,435 -
1,478 3,216 4,694 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMEENH SR FE:
Cash consideration BeRE 1,673 23,743 25,416 -
Less: bank balances and cash BT ENRTERRRE
disposed of - (1,843) (1,843) -

1,673 21,900 23,573 -
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the

required contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited contributions
of HK$63,000 (2013: HK$121,000), amounting to HK$50,850,000 (2013:
HK$48,533,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and

included in employee benefits expense as set out in note 9.

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in

the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 29.

Details of the Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are set

out in the statement of financial position and in note 19.

RMEE
31 December 2014 2014412 H31H
41. R ERIE 8
A5 BR AR B SR IRET BRI SE MBS — TR ERR
HRETE ([BEERRETE ) RAB TR GIER
FTEGPIRY —ERFIEATES B ([REE
B THAERERNAEETERE EmE:
ENEEDNBUNAEEEETHERAERE -
Rz RAHR AR KRR A T AR BEAR B
B E L EAENRMNESHR -

II\I:I/

AEEHM R EMEN(EBRIELREZAEME
B & 48 1) B 5OR RAB A 58I sl r B G &l -
AEBAKEEFTHNNE TE D LERTFEHE
EERABAES AEEURSHENE —FHE
RN EEH MR

RRE S E - FE B R IR KR FIET 81 o8 W ey
A A E K - L FRIE T AT A EHDRR RF E #Y
FE Ko

EREFEAB DR E RGN B8R
© #8FE /350,850,0007% 7T, (20134 : 48,533,000
BIT) B2 HIRE W #5163,000/8 7T (2013
F:121,00087T) - WEHAMTIRE 2 EETR
FZHA -

42. BHRBEEANLTNERE

(a) BAREALEVAESRR

AEBE BB A TOSERFITRIINGA
R MM 291

B

ZAUNCIESYEa): N 0 F
K MIFE19A

B BEINRPBAH R K
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42.

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
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42. A RBAEALTHNHE (&)

(b) Connected party transactions (b) BEEALRS
Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2014 2013
BEALHR RHMHE 2014% 2013F
HK$'000 F %7t HK$ 000 F%7T
The FM Group (note 1) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 155,037 152,879
FMEE (#:1) SEMH YRBUER
The AH Group (note ii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 82,955 91,400
AHEE (Hizi) EEME P REUER
The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 117,545 97,440
LFKE B (Hfztii) EEMR P REANER
Factory Co (note iv) Provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co 26,916 31,299
YNNG =) BB PR AT 4500 T AR5
Chinatex Group (notes v and vi) Purchase of yarns 31,053 26,792
mGRE (WitvR) REY
Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items - -
EEME Y REANER
Mr. HA Kam On Victor (note 40) Disposal of 100% equity interests in Cadicol Management
Consultants Limited 1,673 -

ERREE (M240) i & 7 Cadicol Management Consultants Limited Z
100% % #
Notes:

(i)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Feroz”) entered into a master agreement
(the “FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master Sales Agreement (the
“Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 10 December 2010 and
19 April 2013 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group
to the FM Group. Mr. Feroz is a director of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and accordingly a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The FM Group includes companies which Mr. Feroz or/and his relatives who
are persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)(i) and 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing
Rules individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than half of the
voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors and hence the FM Group are associates of Mr. Feroz. The transactions
contemplated under the FM Master Sales Agreement and the Renewed FM Master
Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

Byt

(i) AR AEEFeroz Omardt & ([Ferozst 4 1) 9 172010
F12A108 %2013F4 19 AR BERFMER HE
R W RELERT A% ((FMAHERZ]) &
EEHOFMBHE T ([EEHFMBHESHZE]) -
FerozZt £ RA R R EMB AR 2 EE RIE
EWRAl BAARARZEEAT - FMEBZKER
BB fEAFerozfe £ R E R EHARAIE14A.11(4)
(D)X EBLAALLA) )RR 2 BB R % E A F)
B AR TR R & 18 B3t 3k HE R b 17 455 Siod% )47 5 3B - B
AR RARE R ZERARNESTGERIBHKE

# AR BULFMEE BFerozft & 2 B2 A+

iRIEE

AR FMAB 4 & 1 ok S A FMARIE E 2R T

BTZRGBRARBZHERERS -

FM#2 85 & 155 2 BARR 120114F 1 A20H £201348 A
318 - MEEHFMARHE 2 IR M2013F9A1R

£2015%12A318 °
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Notes:

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B &R

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2014, annual cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and
ending 31 December 2015 for the Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement are
HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”) entered
into a master agreement (the “AH Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed AH
Master Sales Agreement (the “Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement”) respectively
on 10 December 2010 and 19 April 2013 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns and
similar items by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and accordingly a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The AH Group includes companies which Mr.
Hirdaramani or/and his relatives who are persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)
(i) and 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules individually or together exercise or control
the exercise of more than half of the voting power at general meetings or control
the composition of a majority of the board of directors and hence the AH Group are
associates of Mr. Hirdaramani. The transactions contemplated under the AH Master
Sales Agreement and the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing

connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013, annual cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
and ending 31 December 2015 for the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement
are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and HK$230,000,000 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$230,000,000 for the twelve months ended 31 December 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

B

31 December 2014 20145412 A31H

II\I:I/

42. BB RBAEALTNHE (&)

(b) BEALRS (&)
Wzt (&)

(i)

(ii)

(#&)

BINAAF BB A2013F4 8198 2 AEE K E
FFMARHE 1% H2013F9 A 1H £2014412A31H
IFEAERAME A ER e % Bl E2014512A31H IE &
HZE2015F12A31B L BEFENEE FRE5EH 5
77,000,000 7T + 230,000,0003# T }230,000,000
ETTe

ZEWER W EBBALNT AL R2013F4719R
ZRNEFRHEE2014F12A31B IEFEZFE FR
230,000,000/ 7t ©

KA @l B Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani’t &
(IHirdaramanist 4 ] ) %2010412 4108 & 201344
A9 AEERMAHEB R EME RENUER D
RIETSZ 48 ([AHARSH &) RISEFAHAR &
aE ([ FEFAHLIEEREE])  Hirdaramanife £ 4
AARNEFEENBARZES RIE EMRA-
BAARBIZHEALT AHEE KRB AGIEEH
Hirdaramanist 4 8k, J H 5 17 48 B 85 14A.11(4)(b)
WEREBLAALILG DGR BB AT EZ ZE R FR
ARG £ (B R b ok [ #1765 sk 128 5177 18 38 3 BUA
FHRRE LEHZEAREFTEABHKRKENR
7] E It AHE® AHirdaramanifo £ 2 BB A+ R &
FWRRI AHERSHE i RS E FTARE S S 3
THITZRGERARBNZHFERERS -

AHKE SH & 1535 2 108 201141 H20H 201348
318 - MAAEIMAHABIEE 2 BIRB201349A1H
Z2015%12H31H °

MIMA QT A A0I3F4A10B 2 AEME KF
FTAHA 85 & 1757 20139 A1 2013412 A31H
IFEARIAME A ER %8 B E2014F12A318 IE &
HZE2015F12A31B T BEFEENFE LR85 5
/577,000,0007 7T ~ 230,000,000/% 7T %230,000,000
BTt e

ZEHREX U EBBANR AL A2013F4819H
ZAEREEZE2014F12A31HIE12EAZFE IR
230,000,000 7 ©
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b) Connected party transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

*

*

The Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK") entered into a master agreement
(the “LFK Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement
(the “Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 10 December 2010
and 19 April 2013 regarding the sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group
to members of the LFK Group (i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). As the relatives who are
persons referred to in Rule 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules of a director of the
Company, Mr. HA Kam On, Victor, together exercise or control the exercise of more
than half of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a
majority of the board of directors of LFK, members of the LFK Group are associates
of that director of the Company under the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the LFK Master Sales Agreement and the Renewed LFK Master
Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013, annual cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and
ending 31 December 2015 for the Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement are
HK$124,000,000, HK$372,000,000 and HK$372,000,000 respectively as set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$372,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The Company and Jiangyin Hui Jian Knitting Co. Ltd* CTIEEE AR A F))
(“Factory Co”) entered into a master agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
and a renewed Master Services Agreement (the “Renewed Master Services
Agreement”) respectively on 10 December 2010 and 19 April 2013 regarding the
provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co to the Group. As 51% shareholding
interests of Factory Co is owned by the brother of a director of certain subsidiaries in
the Group, it is an associate of that director under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the Master Services Agreement and the Renewed Master
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company

under the Listing Rules.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed Master Services Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

For identification purpose only

EHEF
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(b) BEALRS (&)
Wzt (&)

(iii)

(iv)

AT ELLFK (Holdings) Limited ([LFK J) 72010412
A108 k201354198 AL @M ALFKEEK E R
A (AILFKREMBAR) HEME - H REUER D
RIFTSZ 481 ([LFKABSE & a8 | ) R A8 B HTLFKAR 8
EnE ([EEHMFKEHERZ]) - BRARAIES
BT RER ETRBIEI4A 111G )Rz B
A ELFKIR R R & F H R IT s iE HI1T 8 ﬁé%wx
ERRRE SEHILFKES SRS HKENAA]
ﬁtmgimﬂﬁ\uw%Zﬁi?i/‘:lﬁéz%éiz
BEAL FRE EHRA LFKEHESEHERKE
HLFKRHEHAE NETZ X BERARR ZHE
BER 5 o

LFK4 $4 & 93 2 HABR 12011451 A20H £201348 A
31H - M4 EHLFKAAIHE 1738 < BAMR 201399 A1
AZE2015%12A318 ¢

MIARNT A A0I3F4A0B 2 AEME KE
HLFKEE S &1 F2013F9 A 1A E2013%12A31H
IFHIERAME R ER S5 Bl E2014612A31H IE &
HZE2015F12A31B L BEENEE FRE5EH 5
/124,000,000 7T ~ 372,000,000/ 7T }2372,000,000
T e

ZEMEX S W EBBANRAIA2013F4819H
ZREMHEE04FI2A3IB L EEZFELR
372,000,000/ 7T °

AAREIRERHBAERAR ([HEARIR
2010512 A 108 %2013F4 A 198 sLAkRR A 7] M A &
BRI T RIS S BIRT L AR a5 ([48 RIS ik 1)

R E R Rig s ([EERERBIHE]) - ARG

BARBEAEEETHERARNZIZEEZBPHES
51%M4E - EMIRE ETRA BB AR ARBESY
B Ao IRIE E AR A AE AR S ik RS AT R
BHBETETZRIBRARRZFHERBERS -

LR 1% % 2 BIR 120111 H20H Z=2013F8 A31
B & T8RS e 2 BIR m2013F9A1H =
20154 12A318 ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B &R

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December 2014
and ending 31 December 2015 for the Renewed Master Services Agreement are
HK$16,000,000, HK$49,000,000 and HK$49,000,000 respectively as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$49,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a material purchase framework
agreement (the “Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) with Chinatex
Corporation (“Chinatex”) in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials for
the manufacture of fabric, garments and cooking oil and foodstuffs by the Group from
the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January

2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amounts for the Material Purchase Framework Agreement for the two
financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the financial year ending 31
December 2015 are HK$310,000,000, HK$411,000,000 and HK$512,000,000 as set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$411,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a product and service supply
framework agreement (the “Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement”) with
Chinatex in relation to the supply of textiles products such as fabric and garments and
dyeing service by the Group to the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries)
commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amounts for the Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement
for the two financial years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 and the financial
year ending 31 December 2015 are HK$150,000,000, HK$170,000,000 and
HK$190,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19
December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$170,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014.

B
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(b) BEALRS (&)
Wzt (&)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(#%)

BMINART AHA2013F4A 190 2 AEFH - KB
% BR %5 9 3% H20134F9 A1 B £20134 12 431 A 1E 8
FEAE A RS LEE2014512A31H 1E M #
ZF20156F 12 A31HIEMBEENFEE FREED IR
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ZEMEX U EMBBARF A R20135F4719R
ZRNERHEE2014F12A31IB IEFEZFE ER
49,000,000/ 7T ©
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Annual Report 2014

42. A RBAEALTHNHE (&)

(c) TEEEABRH

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management RFEEENHMTIEZEEAENHTMUT
during the year was as follows:
The Group
X558

2014 2013
20145 2013F
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
Fees e 1,238 967
Short-term benefits RHER 9,428 7914
Post-employment benefits BRERET 66 379
Equity-settled share-based payments DR E RN AER AR 1,043 1,586
11,775 10,846
The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the BERFBERBABZHEREETZLRXBARF

board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’'s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

(d) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”).
The Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are

concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw

materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to
these state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition,
approximately 75% and 59% (31 December 2013: 48% and 39%
respectively) of the Group’s bank balances (including short-term bank
deposits) and borrowings are placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at

31 December 2014.

ZEBEE R RREA LR MISRE BTEM

ErE - UWHFTNEZEZERN-

REN AEBRHEMAEE
BEEEKE

BRI HE B M
BRITHNRS

HEAMTEEAES

T EAER

Bt

BETHRS

)’TEE’JZ&%N&#‘EE%‘IEEEEF‘ I I
HREZESIKATHHETEE R
JEZ - RRAES
HETHERSHEFE R

IR5 B
P AR B

AZZAEEBEEURSREE R, KB

ARz
EEMBTER (B

SAWIEE KR o I FR20145F12A31H A&
R ERITE T
D RIE#75%K%59% (20134 12A31H = &

K) K A& R
il

48%%39% ) KWK BEARIT BHEBRTL

B



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

BRREHR

Listing : Listed on the Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

since 20 April 1988

Stock Code : 420
Board Lot : 2,000

Shares Issued

Financial Calendar 2014

Financial year ended

Interim results announced

Annual results announced

Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

Annual general meeting

Register of members closed for
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend

Distribution of dividend

2015 interim results to be announced

Shareholder Services

1,203,046,960

31 December 2014
26 August 2014
20 March 2015
22 — 24 June 2015

24 June 2015
6 -8 July 2015

21 July 2015
End of August 2015

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,

please contact the Company’s share registrar:

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations

Ms. Charmaine CHENG

Assistant General Manager — Credit Management and Corporate Affairs

Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 7017

Email pr@fshl.com
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Global Network |BRER484

FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BHEX (KE) GRAF

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BB IS B 20-395%
RBTRREAECE

Tel B +852 2485 1881

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

BHEERTIHEREEIITSERNZENARE @ it - EFFREREERIEI 5 AEwww.fshl.comA

Toronto  Ho Chi Minh City | Seoul | Shanghai _ Singapore
2% AR EL b i

Production facilities are set up in the following countries:
RTIIBREZEEER

China Indonesia Sri Lanka

mE T BR O HEWE
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